
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, October 25, 2021 7:00 pm Fugett Middle School Auditorium 
  

AGENDA 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 

I. Call to Order  ............................................................................................... Mr. McCune 

Salute to the Flag (led by Valerie Watkins and Michael Timko  

of Westtown-Thornbury Elementary School 

 

II. Roll Call ................................................................................................. Ms. Cherashore 

 

III. Public Comments on Agenda Items (Sign-in Required) ........................ Ms. Cherashore 

 

IV. Approval of Minutes of the September 27, 2021 Monthly  

School Board Meeting ................................................................................. Mr. McCune 

 

V. Approval of the October 25, 2021 School Board Meeting Agenda .............. Mr. McCune 

 

VI. Superintendent’s Report .......................................................................... Dr. Sokolowski 

 Student Representatives’ Report .................. Eleana Rudderow, East High School 

    ............ William Porter, Henderson High School 

    ............. Madison D’Ambro, Rustin High School 

 

VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations ...................................................... Dr. Ulmer 

 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda ....................................................................... Mr. McCune 

 

IX. School Board Reports 

 

Committee Reports 

 

A. Education ................................................................................................. Mrs. Tiernan 

* 1. Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 
-Henderson High School Board Game Club 
-Henderson High School HOSA Club (Future Health Professionals) 
-Henderson High School Neuroscience Club 
-Henderson High School Warriors Cricket Club 

* 2. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-East High School Class of 2021 Account 

* 3. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-East High School Cheerleading – Orlando, FL - February 9-14, 2022 

* 4. Approval of Revised Policy 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Affecting Students, First Reading 



 
 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, October 25, 2021 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

* 5. Approval of Revised Policy 104 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Affecting Staff, First Reading 

 

B. Pupil Services ........................................................................................... Ms. Chester 

* 1. Approval of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement 

 

C. Personnel ................................................................................................ Dr. Herrmann 

   

 

D. Property and Finance ............................................................................ Mr. Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval to Commit/Assign Fund Balances and to Complete Transfers from the 

General Fund to Other Funds 

* 2. Approval of 2020-21 Budget Transfers 

* 3. Approval of Addendum to School Aged Child Care Services Agreement 

* 4. Approval of Revised Board Policy 006 Meetings, First Reading 

* 5. Approval of Revised Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order, First Reading 

* 6. Approval of Revised Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings, 

First Reading 

* 7. Approval to Retire Board Policy 006.3 Agendas, First Reading 

 8. Approval of 2022-23 Building Budget Allocations 

 

 Other Reports 

A. Intermediate Unit ................................................................................... Mrs. Tiernan 

B. PSBA Report ........................................................................................ Dr. Herrmann 

C. Legislative Liaison ....................................................................................... Dr. Shaw 

D. Equity Report ........................................................................................... Mr. Durnell 

E. Community Liaison ............................................................................. Mr. Spackman 
 

X. Other Business ............................................................................................ Mr. McCune 

* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of  September 1, 2021 to September 30, 
2021 

* 2. Approval of the September 30, 2021 Financial Report 
 3. Approval to reaffirm the election of Robert Sokolowski to the position of 

Superintendent of Schools and approve his contract of employment for a time 
period of August 14, 2021 through June 30, 2026 

 

XI. Comments from Residents (Sign-in Required) 
 

XII. Adjournment 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of September 27, 2021 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with 
this draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of 
Pennsylvania and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into 
the permanent minute book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and 
lengthy multi-page documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed 
separately for permanent record. 
 
 

I. Call to Order 
The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:00 p.m. in the Fugett Middle School 
Auditorium. Director McCune, Board President, called the meeting to order and Mishri 
Shah and Alexander Osavolchuk of Peirce Middle School led the public in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

II. Roll Call  
Members Present:  Director Bevilacqua, Director Chester, Director Durnell, Director. 
Gallen, Director Herrmann, Director McCune, Director Shaw, Director Spackman. 
Student Representatives: Eleana Rudderow, East High School; William Porter, 
Henderson High School; Madison D’Ambro, Rustin High School. 
 
Members Absent: Director Tiernan 
 
 

III. Public Comments on Agenda Items 
There were no public comments on agenda items. 
 

IV. Approval of  Minutes of the August 23, 2021 Monthly School Board Meeting 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Chester and seconded by Director 
Bevilacqua to approve the minutes of the August 23, 2021 monthly School Board 
Meeting.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 
Director McCune announced that the Board met in Executive Session on the 
following dates: 

 August 27, 2021 regarding safety and security 

 September 3, 2021 regarding personnel and safety and security 

 September 10, 2021 regarding personnel and safety and security  

 September 20, 2021 regarding personnel, real estate, and safety and 
security 

 September 27, 2012 regarding personnel. 
 

V. Approval of the September 27, 2021 School Board Meeting Agenda 



September 27, 2021 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Shaw 
to approve the September 27, 2021 meeting agenda. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Sokolowski and the High School Student Representatives gave monthly 
reports. 
 

VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Durnell 
to approve the Personnel Recommendations as presented.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Chester to approve the following Consent Agenda Items:  

Education 

1. Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 
-East High School Store Account 
-Henderson High School Class of 2025 Account 
-Rustin High School Class of 2025 Account 

2. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson High School Class of 2021 Account 
-Henderson High School Kathy Clark Flamm Memorial Scholarship 

3. Approval of the Election of the following PSBA Officer Candidates: 
-Allison Mathis-North Hills School District, PSBA Vice President 
-Edward Brown-Upper Darby School District, PSBA East Zone Representative 
-Richard Freirchs, PSBA Insurance Trust Trustee (3 year term) 
-William LaCoff, PSBA Insurance Trust Trustee (3 year term) 
-Nathan Mains, PSBA Insurance Trust Trustee (3 year term) 

4. Approval of Revised Policy 218.1 Weapons, Second Reading  

5. Approval of Revised Policy 218.2 – Terroristic Threats, Second Reading  

6. Approval of New Policy 236.1 – Threat Assessment, Second Reading 

7. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 236.1AG1 – Threat Assessment 
Administrative Guidelines , Second Reading 

8. Approval of Revised Policy 247 – Hazing, Second Reading  

9. Approval of Revised Policy 249 – Bullying/Cyberbullying, Second Reading  

10. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 252AG4 – Home Access to the Internet, 
Second Reading 

11. Approval of Revised Policy 352 – Staff Acceptable Use of the Internet, 
Computers, and Network Resources, Second Reading  

12. Approval of Revised Policy 717 – Employee Wireless Communication Devices, 
Second Reading    



September 27, 2021 

13. Approval of Revised Policy 815.1 – Social Media, Second Reading    

14. Approval of Revised Policy 916 – School Volunteers, Second Reading    

15. Approval to Retire Administrative Guideline, 916AG2, Second Reading  

16. Approval of the Election of David Schaap, PSBA President 

Pupil Services 

1. Approval of three (3) Special Education Settlement Agreements 

2. Approval of the Social Emotional Learning Plan Proposal 

3. Approval of the Epic Health Services (PA), LLC Nurse Contract 

4. Approval of CCRES Contract for Student Services Consultation 

Personnel 

Property & Finance 

1. Approval of Revised Board Policy 606.3 Senior Tax Reduction Incentive Volunteer 

Exchange Program-formerly Retiree Substitute Volunteer Program, Second 

Reading  

2. Approval of Revised Board Policy 805 Emergency Preparedness and Response-

formerly Emergency Preparedness, Second Reading 

3. Approval of Revised Board Policy 805.2 School Security Personnel, Second 
Reading 

4. Approval of 2022-23 Budget Calendar 

5. Approval of 2021-22 School Board Goals 

 
Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of August 1, 2021 to August 31, 2021 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2021 

STATEMENT OF DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY  

FOR THE PERIOD AUGUST 1, 2021 - AUGUST 31, 2021 

     

     

GENERAL FUND DISBURSEMENTS 113,310,337.05  

  includes Technology,  

     Federal Programs and any Special State Funds 

 BILLS PAID 12,310,337.05   

 INVESTMENTS 101,000,000.00   

     

     

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 512,180.91  

     

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 2,497,595.89  

     

SPECIAL REVENUE - Athletics 3,040.56  



September 27, 2021 

     

TRUST FUNDS   0.00  

     

CAFETERIA    244,963.79  

     

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 3,046.00  

     

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 6,353.00  

     

     

 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 116,577,517.20  

     

     

NOTE: A copy of the details of the above disbursements is available for 
review from the board secretary. 

 

2. Approval of the August 31, 2021 Financial Report 

 
On roll call vote to approve the above Consent Agenda Items, all members present 
voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

IX. School Board Reports 
 
A. Education Committee— Director Shaw 
 
B. Pupil Services Committee— Director Chester 

 
C. Personnel Committee— Director Herrmann 

 
C-1. Approval of Proposed Agreement between the West Chester Area Education 

Association and the Board of Education of the West Chester Area School 
District 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director 
Gallen to approve Proposed Agreement between the West Chester Area Education 
Association and the Board of Education of the West Chester Area School District 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

D. Property and Finance Committee— Director Bevilacqua 
 

X. Other Business 
 

X-3. Approval of Family Service of Chester County Annual Contract 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Chester and seconded by Director Shaw to 
approve the Family Service of Chester County Annual Contract. 
 



September 27, 2021 

On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
X-4. Approval of Addendums to the following contracts for Paraprofessional Services: 

• Kelly Services 
• General Health Resources, LLC dba GHR Education 
• US Medical Staffing, Inc. 
• Delta-T Group, Inc. 
• Pennhurst Group, LLC dba AVEANNA Development Services 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Chester and seconded by Director 
Bevilacqua to approve the Addendums to the following contracts for Paraprofessional 
Services: 
• Kelly Services 
• General Health Resources, LLC dba GHR Education 
• US Medical Staffing, Inc. 
• Delta-T Group, Inc. 
• Pennhurst Group, LLC dba AVEANNA Development Services. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
X5. Approval of Revised 2021-22 Capital Project List for Technology and Facilities and 

Operations 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Gallen to approve the Revised 2021-22 Capital Project List for Technology and Facilities 
and Operations. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
X6. Approval of Extension to the Agreement of Sale for 829 Paoli Pike 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Chester to approve the Extension to the Agreement of Sale for 829 Paoli Pike. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
X7. Approval of Contract Addendum with Kelly Services Inc. for the 2021-22 school 

year 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Shaw 
to approve the Contract Addendum with Kelly Services Inc. for the 2021-22 school year. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
X8. Approval of the District Tutoring Rate of $75.00 per hour for work performed 

utilizing ESSER and other Covid relief funding 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Durnell 
to approve the District Tutoring Rate of $75.00 per hour for work performed utilizing 
ESSER and other Covid relief funding. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 



September 27, 2021 

X9. Approval of the Homebound Instruction Rate of $75.00 per hour 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director 
Spackman to approve the Homebound Instruction Rate of $75.00 per hour. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
X10. Approval of the Custodial Substitute Rate of $18.00 per hour 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director 
Spackman to approve the Custodial Substitute Rate of $18.00 per hour. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

XI. Comments from Residents 
 

Name Subject of Testimony 

Patty 
Collinsgru 

Stated that her child is home schooled due to concerns regarding the 
current Board approved health and safety plan. Asked the Board to 
create an alternate education plan with parents receiving their allotted 
portion of public school money like a charter/cyber school, allowing 
parents to create a customized education plan for their children. 
Please extend public comment to more than two minutes. 

Frank 
Collinscru 

Felt the Board has had to make decisions last year and this year that 
not everyone agrees with and sympathizes with board. Due to 
unprecedented times has opted to homeschool his child and echoed 
comments about creating an alternative education plan. 

Heather 
Champion 

Stated masking and mandatory vaccinations are against her rights as 
a parent to make decisions for her children until they are of age. 
District and Governor have created a culture of fear and a mental 
health crisis for students and divided the community. Supports 
freedom to choose. 

Laura Detre Stated District emails regarding Covid infections and contact tracing 
are vague and asked that without violating HIPAA laws to provide a 
little more information on grade level or classroom. 

Scott DeLone Spoke on behalf of teachers association and thanked board and 
administration for a fair and amicable negotiation process. New 
agreement provides fair and competitive wages and benefits and will 
allow district to retain and attract quality educators.  

Dan Gillin Sees inconsistences with the materials posted on the district’s equity 
resource page and the recently posted frequently asked questions. 
Requested resource page and FAQS be revised and be more aligned 
as to content and stated this material should not be used in the 
classroom.  

Meghan 
Reikob 

Stated thank you to WCASD educators and discussed the well-
deserved contract, thanks for all you do. Teachers did a remarkable 
job on the 9/11 remembrance. September is suicide prevention month 
and encouraged anyone who has experienced suicidal ideation to 
make a list of why you want to stay alive. 



September 27, 2021 

Name Subject of Testimony 

Anita 
Edgarian 

Stated that Board’s belligerent dictatorial actions have brought national 
and international attention to WCASD. Implied the District bullies, yet 
the District spends thousands of dollars for students to learn how to 
stand up to bullies. She stated she is running for school board. 

Phil 
Garbedian 

Stated his first grade daughter’s biggest complaint is that she does not 
have enough time to eat her lunch. Asked whether an additional 15 
minutes could be added to the lunch schedule or provide a response 
as to why it is only 30 minutes long. 

Nancy Wood Cited country’s and the West Chester community’s history of racism 
and marginalization, thanked the board for prioritizing truthful history, 
and asked that the community support the District as this important 
work continues. 

Fred Burns Feels strongly against having his children wear masks in schools, 
knows there are two sides to the issue, but children are suffering and 
there are negative health effects. Attended the community outreach 
event but did not receive a feedback survey. Suggested doing a parent 
survey regarding masking because some parents are scared to talk at 
Board meetings. Requested the district go back to optional mask 
wearing. 

 
Director Shaw read the following quote, “Let us remember: One book, one pen, one 
child, and one teacher can change the world. ~Malala Yousafzai  
 

XII. Adjournment 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Director Herrmann, seconded by Director Durnell, the 
Board, on voice vote, agreed to adjourn at 8:16 p.m.  
 

 

Board Secretary 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.1 

 
 

I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

1. Robert Beighley, Campus Safety Officer at Henderson HS, effective 10/8/21. 

2. Elizabeth Genders, Spanish Teacher at East HS, effective TBD. 

3. Brenda Gialloreto, Accounting Technician at Spellman Education Center, effective 
10/15/21. 

4. Alonzo Loper, Grade 4 Teacher at East Bradford ES, effective TBD. 

5.   Angela Regrut, Special Education Teacher at Henderson HS, effective 11/24/21. 

 

b. Retirements 

1. Linda Giangiulio, 1.0 Paraprofessional at Fugett MS, effective 10/15/21.  22 years of 
service. 

2. Rory Wilson, 1.0 Mail Coordinator at Spellman Education Center, effective 12/3/21.  
37 years of service. 

 
II.     Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract 

1. Brittany Garraty 

 Placement 1.0 Certified School Nurse at Fern Hill ES, Professional Employee 
(Tenured), effective TBD, Level 5, Step 5, $58,600. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Gwynedd-Mercy College 2009-2013, Master 
of Education from Eastern University 2016-2017 

 Experience Certified School Nurse at Interboro School District from 8/2015 – 
current, Registered Nurse at Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia 11/2011 
– 8/2015, Registered Nurse at Swarthmore College 4/2012 – 6/2015 

 Certification Educational Specialist II, School Nurse 

 

  2. Riley McGowan 

 Placement 1.0 Music (Strings) at Peirce MS, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 12/20/21, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from West Chester University of Pennsylvania 2016 - 
2020 

 Experience Orchestra Director at First Philadelphia Preparatory Charter School 
1/2021 – current, Private Teacher Music and Arts 12/2020 – 5/2021, 
Camp Music Teacher at Upper Darby Music Man Camp 6/2019 - current 

 Certification Instructional I, Music 

 

3. Jacqueline Ruppert 

 Placement 1.0 Certified School Nurse at Exton ES, Professional Employee 
(Tenured), effective TBD, Level 3, Step 5, $54,500. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from George Mason University 1984 – 1989, 
Certified School Nurse from West Chester University of Pennsylvania 
2015 - 2016 

 Experience Certified School Nurse at Oxford Area School District 2/2017 – current, 
Substitute School Nurse with InSight Staffing Solutions 11/2015 – 
2/2017 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.2 

 
 Certification Educational Specialist II, School Nurse 

 

  4. Corey Webb 

 Placement 1.0 Health/Physical Education Teacher at Fugett MS, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 9/28/21, Level 1, Step 
2, $50,100. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from West Chester University of Pennsylvania 
2016-2020 

 Experience Long Term Health/Physical Education Teacher at WCASD from 8/23/21 
– current, Long Term Substitute at Great Valley School District 1/2021 – 
4/2021, Building Substitute at Great Valley School District 12/2020 – 
8/2021 

 Certification Instructional I, Health & Physical Education 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

1. Sarah Bernhardt 

 Placement 1.0 Math Teacher at Rustin HS, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 10/22/21, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. 
Lewis’ leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Millersville University 2009 – 2013, Master of 
Science from Wilmington University 2014 - 2016 

 Experience Mathematics Instructor at Cumberland County Technical Education 
Center 9/2013 – 5/2021, Virtual Math Instructor at Chester County 
Intermediate Unit 5/2021 – 9/2021 

 Certification Instructional I, Mathematics 7-12, Grades 4-8 Mathematics 

 

  2. Nicole Rafferty 

 Placement 1.0 Kindergarten Teacher at Penn Wood ES, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 10/20/21, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  
During Ms. Salvitti’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Pennsylvania State University 2009 – 2013, 
Master of Science from University of Pennsylvania 2016 - 2018 

 Experience Grade 1 Teacher at Fairfax County Public Schools, VA 2013 – 2016, 
1st/3rd Grade Teacher at Tower Hill School, DE 7/2017 – 6/2020, 4th/5th 
Grade Teacher at The Pilot School, DE 8/2020 - current 

 Certification Instructional I, Elementary K06, Reading Specialist, Mid-Level 
Mathematics 7-9 

 

c. Administrative Staff:  

  1. Mary Schwemler 

   Placement 1.0 Manager of Communications at Spellman Education Center, 
effective TBD, $111,975. 

 

d. Support Staff: Non-Bargaining  

    1. Christina Spigarelli 

 Placement 1.0 Campus Safety Officer at Henderson Feeder Pattern, effective 
TBD, $50,000. 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.3 

 
 

e. Support Staff: Contract 

1. Rosa Green 

 Placement 1.0 Security Greeter at East HS, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 
days/year, effective 10/14/21, Group 1, Step 6, $15.49. 

    2. Felyshia Lupacchini 

 Placement 1.0 Autistic Support Paraprofessional at Fugett MS, 7 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Level 1B, Step 3, $13.56. 

3. Treena Marvel 

 Placement 1.0 Library Assistant at Rustin HS, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 
days/year, effective 10/27/21, Group 1, Step 3, $13.30. 

    4. Megan Smith 

 Placement 1.0 Paraprofessional at East HS, 7 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 
days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 3, $13.56. 

 

f. Support Staff: Substitute 

1. Eric Herbster Substitute Custodian, $15.00/hr. 

   

 
III. Personnel Events 

a. Status Change 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Constance 
DiSerafino 

Support 1.0 Security 
Greeter at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 Guidance 
Secretary at East HS 

TBD, Group 
2, Step 10, 
$21.43 

2. Dina 
Lombardi 

Professional .8 
Health/Physical 
Education at .6 
Health/Physical 
Education at 
East HS/.2 
Health/Physical 
Education at 
Fugett MS 

1.0 Health/Physical 
Education at .6 
Health/Physical 
Education at East 
HS/.2 Health/Physical 
Education at Fugett 
MS/.2 Health/Physical 
Education at Cyber 
Program 

TBD 

3. Kellie 
Wallace 

Professional .4 Staff Nurse 
at Mary C. 
Howse 
ES/Westtown-
Thornbury ES 

1.0 Certified School 
Nurse at Westtown 
Thornbury ES 

TBD, Level 
3, Step 5, 
$54,500 

 
b. Involuntary Transfer 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Melinda 
Benson 

Professional .8 Speech at 
Fern Hill ES/.2 
Speech at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Speech at Fern 
Hill ES 

10/8/21 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.4 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

2. William 
Binkley 

Professional .5 Music Teacher 
at Exton ES/.5 
Music Teacher at 
Glen Acres ES 

.4 Music Teacher at 
Exton ES/.4 Music 
Teacher at Glen 
Acres ES/.2 Music 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

10/11/21 

3. Mary 
Condon 

Professional .8 Speech at 
Starkweather 
ES/.2 Speech at 
Cyber Program 

1.0 Speech at 
Starkweather ES 

10/8/21 

4. Kenneth 
Fuette 

Professional .5 Music Teacher 
at Exton ES/.5 
Music Teacher at 
Glen Acres ES 

.4 Music Teacher at 
Exton ES/.5 Music 
Teacher at Glen 
Acres ES/.1 Music 
Teacher at Cyber 
Program 

10/11/21 

5. Rosemarie 
Hetzel 

Professional .8 Speech at 
Stetson MS/.2 
Speech at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Speech at 
Stetson MS 

10/8/21 

6. Colleen 
Meighan 

Professional .4 Speech at 
Penn Wood 
ES/.4 Speech at 
Rustin HS/.2 
Speech at Cyber 
Program 

.6 Speech at Penn 
Wood ES/.4 Speech 
at Rustin HS 

10/8/21 

7. Elizabeth 
Wilson 

Professional .8 Speech at 
Westtown 
Thornbury ES/.2 
Speech at Cyber 
Program 

1.0 Speech at 
Westtown-
Thornbury ES 

10/8/21 

 
c. Voluntary Transfer - None 

 
IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave  

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

     1. Kimberly 
Onderdonk 

1.0 Certified School Nurse 
at Fern Hill ES/East 
Goshen ES 

1/26/2022 6/16/2022 

 
b. Unpaid Leave - None 

 
 V.  Additional Information 

1. Ulese Cesarski, Library Assistant at EBE/EXE has a salary change – Group 2, Step 
3, $16.23/hr., retroactive to her start date of 11/30/2020. 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.5 

 
2. Shirin Choudhary’s start date was 10/11/21. 

3. Ryan Colley’s start date is 11/17/21. 

4. Thomas Curtin’s start date was 10/11/21. 

5. Thomas Donnell’s last day was 9/27/21. 

6. Kristina Fennelly’s start date was 10/5/21, salary change to Group 1B, Step 6, 
$15.49/hr. 

7. Megan Grande’s start date was 9/30/21. 

8. Rebecca King’s start date was 10/11/21. 

   9. Sean Lamb’s start date is 10/25/21. 

 10. The District and the Support Staff Association came to an agreement to raise 
paraprofessional salaries through an MOU. 

 11. In accordance with the PA State Auditor’s recommendation, the following list of 
drivers, employed by our transportation contractors Krapf’s and On the Go Kids, 
require School Board approval.  The credentials and security clearances for each of 
these drivers has been verified to be in compliance with our transportation carrier 
contracts and have been vetted through the WCASD Transportation Office: 

 
KRAPF’S 

 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Ty Anderson Driver 

Beverly  Bahm Driver 

Barbara Bailey Driver 

Margaret Bailey Driver 

Terre Baker Driver 

Steve Bartos Driver 

Steven Batcher Driver 

Bert Bellano Driver 

Courtney Beyer Driver 

Kira Biddle Driver 

Donna Birkett Driver 

Joel Blake Driver 

Charles Booth Driver 

Thomas Boyle Driver 

Vera Brooks Driver 

Rosanna Brown Driver 

Becky Cagie Driver 

Patty Carey Driver 

Kerrie Carranza Driver 

Katie Chatman-Royce Driver 

Janice Cirwithian-Barr Driver 

Carol Cloud Driver 

Janet Conlon Driver 

Janice Conowal Driver 

Joanne Cowan Driver 

Steve Cowan Driver 

Laurie Crouse Driver 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.6 

 
FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Elijah Dalie Driver 

Jim Danks Driver 

Darren Daughtry Driver 

Cherie DeBeaupre Driver 

Glenn Dieffenbach Driver 

Eric DiPretore Driver 

Richard DiPretore Driver 

Michelle DiPretore Driver 

Brenda Dolinger Driver 

Dan  Elliott Driver 

Michele  Esworthy Driver 

Lisa Festa Driver 

Giulia Fetterman Driver 

Tom Forsythe Driver 

Deven Garvey Driver 

Samantha Gerisch Driver 

Alyssa Gincley Driver 

Staci Gincley Driver 

Tim Halili Driver 

Linda Hamilton Driver 

Shani Hash Driver 

Meghann Hatton Driver 

David Hegedus Driver 

Marissa Johnson Driver 

Bruce Johnson Driver 

Crystal Kahn Driver 

Danielle Kasian Driver 

Jack Kemery Driver 

Mary Kirkner Driver 

Akira Kitchener Driver 

Olive Kosasih Driver 

Jim Krause Driver 

John Lansdale Driver 

Christina Lear Driver 

Jean Lewis Driver 

Shannon Lewis Driver 

Lester Logan Driver 

Rodney Lomax Driver 

Jamie Mahon Driver 

Steve Mandell Driver 

Lori March Driver 

Vivian Mariano Driver 

Tony  Marrongelli Driver 

Carolynn Maslo Driver 

Terri Massimini Driver 

Henry McCullough Driver 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.7 

 
FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Terri McFalls Driver 

Brian McMullan Driver 

James McNamee Driver 

Falishia Medley Driver 

Phillip Mentzer Driver 

Robert Miller Driver 

Anna Mooney Driver 

Greg Moore Driver 

Richard Moran Driver 

Stephanie Morse Driver 

Albert Morton Driver 

Ashley Murphy Driver 

Lisa Nichols Driver 

Lori O’Neal Driver 

Lynzie Orlando Driver 

Debbie  Pettit Driver 

Stacy Pollard Driver 

Teyse Pollard Driver 

Richard Quinn Driver 

Donald Rehrig Driver 

Stephanie Reid Driver 

Jean Ringsdorf Driver 

Mike Rossiello Driver 

Cheryl  Sabb Driver 

Joe Santella Driver 

Stacey Savard Driver 

Suzanne Schaefer Driver 

Leonard Shirk Driver 

Lisa Sickler Driver 

Glenda Smith Driver 

Rana Soliman Driver 

Donna Taylor Driver 

Andi Thomas Driver 

George Thomas Driver 

Jackie Thornton Driver 

Peter Tidball Driver 

Deb Tinsman Driver 

Will Torres Driver 

Jimmy Vansant Driver 

Tim Vickrey Driver 

Sarah Ward Driver 

Melanie Wilkie Driver 

Yan Ming Wong Driver 

 
 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.8 

 
ON THE GO KIDS 

 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Arlean Abrams Driver 

Mark Aceto Driver 

John Ammon Driver 

Carol Anderson Driver 

Mechelle Axe Driver 

Marilyn Baldwin  Driver 

Brenda Bernard Driver 

Marsha Book Driver 

Kyle Book Driver 

Tiffani Brickus Driver 

Tonya Brickus Driver 

Dorothy  Buchert Driver 

Helen Christensen Driver 

Herb Clader Driver 

Bridgette Clark Driver 

Charlie Copeland Driver 

Jesse Cox Driver 

Paul Crosby Driver 

Kathleen DeLong Driver 

Letha DiSario Driver 

Fouzia El Khiri Driver 

Erica  Faison Driver 

Vicki Feehrer Driver 

Wayne Findley Driver 

Mary Flinn Driver 

Noah Fox Driver 

Jennifer Fried Driver 

Kacie Furlong Driver 

Bob Gillen Driver 

Elisa Groff Driver 

Sarah Hanna Driver 

Rodney Hendry Driver 

Lori Hugo Driver 

Lori Jenkins Driver 

Pamela Kitchener Driver 

Johana Kruse Driver 

Joleen Leslie Driver 

Donna Lewis Driver 

Bill Lowe Driver 

William McLaughlin Driver 

Brenda Mendiola-Ortiz Driver 

Robert  Messier Driver 

Laurie Micken Driver 

Philip Micken Driver 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.9 

 
FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Ross Mowery Driver 

Joanne Mozer Driver 

Pamela Pierce Driver 

Teresa Raysor Driver 

Janeece Richardson Driver 

Gerry Ryan Driver 

Dominick Scatamacchia Driver 

Tracy Sellers Driver 

Kelly Shenk Driver 

Renae Shultz Driver 

Sarah Silvestri Driver 

Dan Silvestri Driver 

Paul Smith Driver 

Fred Speers Driver 

Walt Speier Driver 

Patricia Spence Driver 

Dmetri Tabor Driver 

Bob Toland Driver 

Michael  Trichoski Driver 

Breanna Urner Driver 

Loretta Vanderslice Driver 

Cheryl Vogelsang Driver 

Christina Waldrop Driver 

Marsha  Williams Driver 

Lorraine Williams Driver 

Tianna Woodward Driver 

Tasha Wylie Driver 

Gloria Floyd Aide 

Lisa Hardy Aide 

Edwin Hyden Aide 

Crystal Johnson Aide 

Felicia Jones Aide 

Mona Langham Aide 

Kathy McComsey Aide 

Brittany McFalls Aide 

Jane O’Gorman Aide 

Alexis Rash Aide 

Courtney Ryan Aide 

Ruth Stanley Aide 

Sara  Sunderland Aide 

David Williamson Aide 

Georgette Winkey Aide 

 
VI. Tutoring 

Last Name First Name Location Position Title 

Alder Karen East Bradford ES Tutor 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.10 

 
Last Name First Name Location Position Title 

Baker Heather East Bradford ES Tutor 

Cinnamond Amanda East Bradford ES Tutor 

Dunn Diana East Bradford ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Giampalmi Lisa East Bradford ES Tutor 

Brown Marcus Exton ES Tutor 

Croft Sarah Exton ES Tutor 

Davis Coleen Exton ES Tutor 

Kulesza Ryan Exton ES Tutor 

Kulesza Ryan Exton ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Meredith Stacy Exton ES Tutor 

Root Kara Glen Acres ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Root Kara Glen Acres ES Tutor 

Burgess Donna Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Fitch Steven Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Miller Kristen Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Tibbs-Brown Stephanie Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Rapoport Renee Hillsdale ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Rapoport Renee Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Baer Katherine Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

DeCicco Alyssa Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

Gorrie Carolyn Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

Seese Desiree Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

Sochacki Barbara Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

Sweeney Alison Mary C. Howse ES Tutor 

Anderson Pamela Penn Wood ES Tutor 

Joseph Brianna Penn Wood ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Joseph Brianna Penn Wood ES Tutor 

Santangelo Michelle Penn Wood ES Tutor 

Sommer Christine Starkweather ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

Stoddard Lisa Starkweather ES Site Manager for 
Tutoring 

 
 
VII. Supplemental Contracts 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

’21-‘22 
Additions:       

DeLeo Kimberly FMS Annual 1 50.00% $2,156.00 
Ski & Snowboard 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.11 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Gorrie  Carolyn MCH Annual 1 100.00% $1,540.00 
Reading 
Olympics 

Mazzagatti Laura FMS Annual 6 20.00% $259.20 
8th Grade Team 
Leader 

Nefos Frank FMS Annual 1 50.00% $2,156.00 
Ski & Snowboard 
Coach 

Riely Stephanie Cyber Annual 1 100.00% $308.00 
Team Leader: 8th 
Grade 

Risch Kyle SMS Annual 1 100.00% $1,848.00 
Lighting & Sound 
Technician 

Thomas Amy HDE Annual 1 100.00% $924.00 News Team 

Vogan Sarah SMS Annual 1 100.00% $2,772.00 Drama Sponsor 

Winfield Carrie FHE Annual 1 100.00% $924.00 
Student Council 
Advisor 

        

Boccio Leslie EHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 

Head 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Boyd James EHS Winter 10 100.00% $5,334.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Brown Alyssa EHS Winter 2 100.00% $4,312.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Carozza Beth Ann EHS Winter 12 50.00% $3,857.00 
Head Swimming 
Coach 

Carozza Beth Ann EHS Winter 12 50.00% $2,436.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Chafetz Marc EHS Winter 12 100.00% $5,684.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Clifford Morgan EHS Winter 1 100.00% $3,080.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Costin Doug EHS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 
Winter 
Intramurals 

Duncan Rodney EHS Winter 6 100.00% $4,536.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Durant Tom EHS Winter 8 100.00% $6,992.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Gallo John EHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $8,740.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

Garvin Kevan EHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Lanier Kareem EHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,520.00 
Head Boys Track 
Coach 

Listrani Erin EHS Winter 12 100.00% $7,714.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.12 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Mazzarelli Nina EHS Winter 4 100.00% $4,410.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

McCormick David EHS Winter 6 50.00% $3,078.00 
Head Swimming 
Coach 

McCormick David EHS Winter 8 50.00% $2,208.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Nee Joanna EHS Winter 12 100.00% $4,872.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Stephen Scott EHS Winter 8 100.00% $1,104.00 
Winter 
Intramurals 

Wiggins James EHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,520.00 
Head Girls Track 
Coach 

Young Jessica EHS Winter 8 100.00% $3,680.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Ziegler Matthew EHS Winter 12 100.00% $5,684.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

        

Adger Briheem HHS Winter 6 100.00% $4,536.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Beighley Robert HHS Winter 8 100.00% $6,992.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

Bornstad Kevin HHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Bott Jeffrey HHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $8,740.00 
Head Swimming 
Coach 

Buda Amy HHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Cella Alyssa HHS Winter 6 100.00% $3,564.00 

Asst. 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Clark Kathleen HHS Winter 8 100.00% $4,416.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Clay Charles HHS Winter 8 100.00% $1,104.00 
Winter 
Intramurals 

Edwards Caleb HHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Frattura Robert HHS Winter 6 100.00% $6,156.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Johnson David HHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Kelly Kevin HHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $6,900.00 
Head Boys Track 
Coach 

Kelly Kevin HHS Winter 15+ 20.00% $1,380.00 
Head Girls Track 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.13 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Lind Cody HHS Winter 6 50.00% $2,268.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Lunardi John HHS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 
Winter 
Intramurals 

Maturani Morgan HHS Winter 1 100.00% $4,312.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

McCormick Thomas HHS Winter 2 100.00% $3,696.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Muzi Jarrett HHS Winter 10 100.00% $5,334.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Neff Greta HHS Winter 8 100.00% $6,992.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Ramos Lisa HHS Winter 12 100.00% $5,684.00 

Head 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Ronayne Jennifer HHS Winter 8 100.00% $4,416.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Taylor Jacob HHS Winter 4 50.00% $2,205.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Wilson Charles HHS Winter 2 80.00% $3,696.00 
Head Girls Track 
Coach 

        

Alvanitakis John RHS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 Intramurals 

Bacon Anthony RHS Winter 4 100.00% $4,410.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Brown Shaz RHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $6,900.00 
Head Boys Track 
Coach 

Callahan Kiera RHS Winter 1 50.00% $2,926.00 
Head Swimming 
Coach 

Callahan Kiera RHS Winter 1 50.00% $1,848.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Carey Grace RHS Winter 2 100.00% $3,696.00 
Asst. Swimming 
(Diving) Coach 

Collins James RHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,520.00 
Head Girls Track 
Coach 

DeWitt Steven RHS Winter 1 50.00% $2,926.00 
Head Swimming 
Coach 

DeWitt Steven RHS Winter 2 50.00% $1,848.00 
Asst. Swimming 
Coach 

Falcone James RHS Winter 4 50.00% $2,205.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Finding Anthony RHS Winter 8 50.00% $2,576.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Haid William RHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.14 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Harkins Brad RHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $6,440.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Hasson Carrie RHS Winter 8 100.00% $5,152.00 

Head 
Cheerleading 
Coach 

Hazinsky Thomas RHS Winter 1 100.00% $4,312.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Leviston LeRoi RHS Winter 1 100.00% $4,312.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

McLaughlin Richard RHS Winter 8 50.00% $2,576.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Mohring Michael RHS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 Intramurals 

Mostardi Vincent RHS Winter 1 100.00% $5,852.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Nicholson Kristina RHS Winter 8 50.00% $2,576.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

St. Clair Michael RHS Winter 15+ 100.00% $6,440.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Stackhouse Lauren RHS Winter 4 100.00% $5,985.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 

White Aston RHS Winter 4 100.00% $5,985.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

        

Colley Ryan FMS Winter 1 100.00% $2,464.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Dunn Michael FMS Winter 8 100.00% $2,944.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Giordano Benjamin FMS Winter 4 100.00% $2,205.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Hughes Miriam FMS Winter 4 100.00% $2,205.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Lindsay Charles FMS Winter 10 100.00% $3,810.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

Lindsay Charles FMS Winter 10 100.00% $1,143.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Webb Corey FMS Winter 1 100.00% $2,464.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Wilson Lindsay FMS Winter 10 100.00% $3,048.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Wilson Lindsay FMS Winter 6 100.00% $972.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 

        

Dumas Michael PMS Winter 12 100.00% $4,060.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

Dumas Michael PMS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.15 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Fitch Steven PMS Winter 4 100.00% $2,205.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Jenkins Stephen PMS Winter 6 100.00% $2,592.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 

McNichol Mike PMS Winter 15+ 100.00% $3,680.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Wiegner Harry PMS Winter 10 100.00% $3,048.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Wiegner Harry PMS Winter 12 100.00% $1,218.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Wildermuth Timothy PMS Winter 2 100.00% $2,464.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

        

Ascareggi James SMS Winter 15+ 100.00% $3,680.00 
Head Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Busz Gerald SMS Winter 8 100.00% $2,576.00 
Asst. Girls 
Basketball Coach 

Busz Gerald SMS Winter 8 100.00% $1,104.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Fad Alex SMS Winter 2 100.00% $3,080.00 
Head Wrestling 
Coach 

Seaman Brannon SMS Winter 4 100.00% $2,520.00 
Asst. Wrestling 
Coach 

Seaman Brannon SMS Winter 4 100.00% $945.00 
6th Grade 
Intramurals 

Schwartz Robert SMS Winter 1 100.00% $2,156.00 
Asst. Boys 
Basketball Coach 

Stolzer Peter SMS Winter 15+ 100.00% $3,680.00 
Head Boys 
Basketball Coach 

        

‘21-‘22 Removals:       

Dick Ashley SMS Annual 1 50.00% $1,232.00 
Student Activities 
Advisor 

Galajda Amanda FHE Annual 1 100.00% $4,928.00 Head Teacher 

Root Kara GAE Annual 10 100.00% $2,667.00 CCRC Facilitator 

        

’21-’22 Adjustments:        

Abbott Shayna FMS Annual 6 80.00% $1,036.80 
8th Grade Team 
Leader 

Brown Danielle SMS Annual 1 80.00% $1,971.20 
Student Activities 
Advisor 

Byerly Scott RHS Annual 15+ 50.00% $1,380.00 
Freshmen Class 
Advisor 

Densmore Thomas EHS Annual 10 100.00% $2,667.00 
Science 
Competition Asst.  



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – October 25, 2021 - p.16 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Henderson Ruth EHS Annual 10 100.00% $3,429.00 
Science 
Competition 

Roebuck Erica SMS Fall 
Step
4 100.00% $3,312.00 

Head Boys 
Soccer Coach 

Wiegner Harry SMS Fall 
Step 
6 33.30% $1,216.78 

Asst. Football 
Coach 

 
 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, October 25, 2021           7:00 PM Fugett Middle School Auditorium 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 

IX.  School Board Reports 
 
Education 
1. Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 

-Henderson High School Board Game Club 
-Henderson High School HOSA Club (Future Health Professionals) 
-Henderson High School Neuroscience Club 
-Henderson High School Warriors Cricket Club 

2. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-East High School Class of 2021 Account 

3. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-East High School Cheerleading – Orlando, FL - February 9-14, 2022 

4. Approval of Revised Policy 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting 
Students, First Reading 

5. Approval of Revised Policy 104 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting 
Staff, First Reading 

 
Pupil Services 
1. Approval of one (1) Special Education Settlement Agreement 

 
Personnel 

 
Property & Finance 
1. Approval to Commit/Assign Fund Balances and to Complete Transfers from the 

General Fund to Other Funds 
2. Approval of 2020-21 Budget Transfers 
3. Approval of Addendum to School Aged Child Care Services Agreement 
4. Approval of Revised Board Policy 006 Meetings, First Reading 
5. Approval of Revised Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order, First Reading 
6. Approval of Revised Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings, First 

Reading 
7. Approval to Retire Board Policy 006.3 Agendas, First Reading 

 
X. Other Business 
1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 

Summary Schedule for the Period of September 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021 
2. Approval of the September 30, 2021 Financial Report 

 
 



 
CONSENT AGENDA  Page 2 Monday, October 25, 2021 

Responsible Staff: Dr. Sokolowski 
Background   
These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require 
discussion by the Board. If any Board member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board 
President will move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place on the regular 
agenda. 

 



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Education Committee 
 

October 25, 2021 
 

Action Items 
 

 
 
Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 
-Henderson High School Board Game Club 
-Henderson High School HOSA Club (Future Health Professionals) 
-Henderson High School Neuroscience Club 
-Henderson High School Warriors Cricket Club 
Approval is requested to establish the following Account(s): 
-Henderson High School Board Game Club 
-Henderson High School HOSA Club (Future Health Professionals) 
-Henderson High School Neuroscience Club-Henderson High School Warriors Cricket Club 
 
I so move. 
 

Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-East High School Class of 2021 Account 
Approval is requested to terminate the following Account(s): 
-East High School Class of 2021 Account 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-East High School Cheerleading – Orlando, FL - February 9-14, 2022 

Approval is requested of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

-East High School Cheerleading – Orlando, FL - February 9-14, 2022 

I so move. 
 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting 
Students, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Students, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of Revised Policy 104 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting 
Staff, First Reading 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Staff, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 



 

 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Education Committee  

 
October 11, 2021 

Fugett MS Auditorium 
 

Start: 6:30 pm – Finish: 7:16 pm  
 

 

Attending Committee Members:  

 ☒ Sue Tiernan (Chair), ☐ Joyce Chester, ☒ Daryl Durnell, ☒ Kate Shaw 

 

Other Board Members: 

  ☒ Gary Bevilacqua, ☐ Brian Gallen, ☒ Karen Herrmann, ☒ Chris McCune, ☒ Randell 

Spackman 
 

Administration: 

☒ Robert Sokolowski ☒  Kalia Reynolds ☒ Tammi Florio ☒ Dawn Mader ☒ Sara Missett   

   ☒  Michael Wagman 

 
 

Items on Agenda: 

 Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes – September 13, 2021  

 Approval of revisions to Policy 103 Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Students  

 Approval of revisions to Policy 104 Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Staff  

 Structured Literacy Presentation  

 Secondary Library Media Program Presentation 
 

Education Committee Actions/Outcomes to be placed on October 25, 2021 Board Agenda for 
Approval: 

Agenda Item Vote 
Approval of the Education Committee Meeting Minutes – September 13, 2021  
 Vote3-0 

Approval of revisions to Policy 103 Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Students Vote3-0 

Approval of revisions to Policy 104 Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment 
Affecting Staff Vote3-0 

 

 
Education Committee Consent Agenda Items: 

 
Approval to Establish the following Account(s): 

 Henderson High School Board Game Club 

 Henderson High School Warriors Cricket Club 

 Henderson High School HOSA Club (Future Health Professionals) 



OCTOBER Education Committee Minutes -2- October 11, 2021 

 
 
 

 Henderson High School Neuroscience Club 
 
Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 

 East High School Class of 2021 Account 
 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

 East High School Cheerleading – Orlando, FL - February 9-14, 2022 
 
 

 
Items to be discussed at a later date: None 
 
 
Comments on Agenda Items: 

1. Judi DiFonzo – Structured Literacy 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting Students

Code 103

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised April 26, 2021

Prior Revised Dates 3/25/2019; 9/29/2020

Authority
 
The Board declares it to be the policy of this district to provide an equal opportunity for all students to
achieve their maximum potential through the programs and activities offered in the schools without
discrimination on the basis of race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, ancestry, national origin, marital status, pregnancy or handicap/disability.[1][2][3][4][5][6][7]
[8][9][10][11][12][13][14][15][16][17]
 
The Board also declares it to be the policy of this district to comply with federal law and regulations
under Title IX prohibiting sexual harassment, which is a form of unlawful discrimination on the basis of
sex. Such discrimination shall be referred to throughout this policy as Title IX sexual harassment.
Inquiries regarding the application of Title IX to the district may be referred to the Title IX Coordinator,
to the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education, or both.
 
The district is committed to the maintenance of a safe, positive learning environment for all students
that is free from discrimination. Discrimination is inconsistent with the rights of students and the
educational and programmatic goals of the district and is prohibited on school property, and at or, in the
course of, district-sponsored programs or activities, including on any conveyance providing
transportation to or from school or school-sponsored activities.
 
Violations of this policy, including acts of retaliation as described in this policy, or knowingly providing
false information, may result in disciplinary consequences under applicable Board policy and procedures.
[18][19][20][21]
 
The Board directs that the foregoing statement of Board policy be included in each student and staff
handbook, and that this policy and related administrative guidelines be posted to the district’s website.
 
The Board requires a notice stating that the district does not discriminate in any manner, including Title
IX sexual harassment, in any district education program or activity, to be issued to all students,
parents/guardians, employment applicants, employees and all unions or professional organizations
holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the district. All discrimination notices and
information shall include the title, office address, telephone number and email address of the
individual(s) designated as the Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator.
 
Reports of Title IX Sexual Harassment and Other Discrimination and Retaliation

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.1.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter15/chap15toc.html&d=
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter4/s4.4.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=014&chpt=16C
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1961&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=341&chpt=0&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-106
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-V
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv


 
The Board encourages students and third parties who believe they or others have been subject to Title
IX sexual harassment, other discrimination or retaliation to promptly report such incidents to the
building principal. A person who is not an intended victim or target of discrimination but is adversely
affected by the offensive conduct may file a report of discrimination.
 
The student’s parents/guardians or any other person with knowledge of conduct that may violate this
policy is encouraged to immediately report the matter to the building principal.
 
A school employee who suspects or is notified that a student has been subject to conduct that
constitutes a violation of this policy shall immediately report the incident to the building principal, as
well as properly making any mandatory police or child protective services reports required by law.[22]
 
If the building principal is the subject of a complaint, the student, third party or a reporting employee
shall report the incident directly to the Title IX Coordinator.
 
The complainant or the individual making the report may use the Discrimination/Sexual
Harassment/Retaliation Report Form (103AG1) for purposes of reporting an incident or incidents in
writing; however, verbal reports of an incident or incidents shall be accepted, documented and the
procedures of this policy and the relevant administrative guidelines followed.
 
The building principal shall promptly notify the Title IX Coordinator of all reports of discrimination, Title
IX sexual harassment or retaliation. The Title IX Coordinator shall promptly contact the complainant
regarding the report to gather additional information as necessary, and to discuss the availability of
supportive measures. The Title IX Coordinator shall consider the complainant’s wishes with respect to
supportive measures.
 
The Title IX Coordinator shall conduct an assessment to determine whether the reported circumstances
are most appropriately addressed through the Discrimination Complaint Procedures prescribed in
Administrative Guideline 103AG2, or if the reported circumstances meet the definition of Title IX sexual
harassment and are most appropriately addressed through the Title IX Sexual Harassment Procedures
and Grievance Process for Formal Complaints in Administrative Guideline 103AG3, or other Board
policies.
 
Disciplinary Procedures When Reports Allege Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
When a report alleges Title IX sexual harassment, disciplinary sanctions may not be imposed until the
completion of the grievance process for formal complaints outlined in 103AG3. The district shall
presume that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged conduct until a determination has been
made at the completion of the grievance process for formal complaints.
 
When an emergency removal, as described in 103AG3, is warranted to address an immediate threat to
the physical health or safety of an individual, and it is not feasible to continue educational services
remotely or in an alternative setting, the normal procedures for suspension and expulsion shall be
conducted to accomplish the removal, including specific provisions to address a student with a disability
where applicable.[18][20][23][24]
 
When an emergency removal is not required, disciplinary sanctions shall be considered in the course of
the Title IX grievance process for formal complaints. Following the issuance of the written determination
and any applicable appeal, any disciplinary action specified in the written determination or appeal
decision shall be implemented in accordance with the normal procedures for suspensions, expulsions or
other disciplinary actions, including specific provisions to address a student with a disability where
applicable.[18][19][20][23]
 
Discipline/Placement of Student Convicted or Adjudicated of Sexual Assault 
 
Upon notification of a conviction or adjudication of a student in this district for sexual assault against
another student enrolled in this district, the district shall comply with the disciplinary or placement
requirements established by state law and Board policy.[25][26]

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=18&subsctn=1


 
Confidentiality
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a report and the investigation
related to any form of discrimination or retaliation, including Title IX sexual harassment, shall be
handled in accordance with applicable law, regulations, this policy, administrative guidelines, and the
district's legal and investigative obligations.[27][28][29][30][31]
 
Retaliation
 
The Board prohibits retaliation by the district or any other person against any person for:[30]

1. Reporting or making a formal complaint of any form of discrimination or retaliation, including Title
IX sexual harassment. 
 

2. Testifying, assisting, participating or refusing to participate in a related investigation process or
other proceeding or hearing. 
 

3. Acting in opposition to practices the person reasonably believes to be discriminatory.

The district, its employees and others are prohibited from intimidating, threatening, coercing, or
discriminating against anyone for actions described above. Individuals are encouraged to contact the
Title IX Coordinator immediately if retaliation is believed to have occurred.
 
Definitions
 
Complainant shall mean an individual who is alleged to be the victim.
 
Respondent shall mean an individual alleged to be the perpetrator of the discriminatory or harassing
conduct.
 
Discrimination
 
Discrimination shall mean to treat individuals differently, or to harass or victimize based on a
protected classification including race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, ancestry, national origin, marital status, pregnancy, or handicap/disability. 
 
Harassment is a form of discrimination based on protected classification listed in this policy, consisting
of unwelcome conduct such as graphic, written, electronic, verbal or nonverbal acts including offensive
jokes, slurs, epithets and name-calling, ridicule or mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive objects or
pictures, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, or other conduct that may be harmful or humiliating
or interfere with a person’s school or school-related performance and when such conduct is:

1. Sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive; and 
 

2. A reasonable person in the complainant’s position would find that it creates an intimidating,
threatening or abusive educational environment such that it deprives or adversely interferes with
or limits an individual or group of the ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities
or opportunities offered by a school.

Definitions Related to Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
Formal complaint shall mean a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator
alleging Title IX sexual harassment and requesting that the district investigate the allegation under the
grievance process for formal complaints. The authority for the Title IX Coordinator to sign a formal
complaint does not make the Title IX Coordinator a party in the grievance process for formal
complaints. The phrase “document filed by a complainant” refers to a document or electronic
submission that contains the complainant’s physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicates that the
complainant is the person filing the formal complaint.[29][32]
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


Supportive measures shall mean nondisciplinary, nonpunitive individualized services offered as
appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent
before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal complaint has been filed.[32]
 
Supportive measures shall be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the educational
program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to
protect the safety of all parties or the educational environment, or to deter sexual harassment.
Supportive measures may include, but are not limited to:[32]

1. Counseling. 
 

2. Extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments.  
 

3. Modifications of class schedules. 
 

4. Campus escort services. 
 

5. Mutual restrictions on contact between the parties. 
 

6. Increased security. 
 

7. Monitoring of certain areas of the campus. 
 

8. Assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis programs. 
 

9. Assistance from community health resources including counseling resources.

Supportive measures may also include, when in accordance with applicable law, regulation or Board
policy, assessments or evaluations to determine eligibility for special education or related services, or
the need to review an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or Section 504 Service Agreement based
on a student’s behavior.[17][18][23][24][33]
 
Title IX sexual harassment means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the
following:[32]

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or district service on an
individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct, commonly referred to as quid pro quo
sexual harassment. 
 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive and objectively
offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to a district education program or activity. 
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence or stalking. 
 

a. Dating violence means violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim and where the existence of such
a relationship is determined by the following factors:[34] 
 

i. Length of relationship. 
 

ii. Type of relationship. 
 

iii. Frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. 
 

b. Domestic violence includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a
current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim
shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the
victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the
victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving federal

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291


funding, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that
person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.[34]  
 

c. Sexual assault means a sexual offense under state or federal law that is classified as a
forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation.[35] 
 

d. Stalking, under Title IX means stalking on the basis of sex, for example when the stalker
desires to date a victim. Stalking means to engage in a course of conduct directed at a
specific person that would cause a reasonable person to either:[34] 
 

i. Fear for their safety or the safety of others.  
 

ii. Suffer substantial emotional distress.

Such conduct must have taken place during a district education program or activity and against a
person in the United States to qualify as sexual harassment under Title IX. An education program or
activity includes the locations, events or circumstances over which the district exercises substantial
control over both the respondent and the context in which the harassment occurs. Title IX applies to all
of a district’s education programs or activities, whether such programs or activities occur on-campus or
off-campus.[28][29][32]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
In order to maintain a program of nondiscrimination practices that is in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, the Board designates the Director of Human Resources or designee as the district's
Compliance Officer and the Director of Equity and Assessment or designee as the district's Title
IX Coordinator.[36]
 
The Compliance Officer/Title IX Coordinator can be contacted at:
 

Address: 782 Springdale Drive, Exton PA 19341
email: complianceofficerjulmer@wcasd.net
Phone: 484-266-1006

 
The Title IX Coordinator can be contacted at:
 

Address: 782 Springdale Drive, Exton PA 19341
email: titleIXcoordinator@wcasd.net
Phone: 484-266-1201

 
The Compliance Officer/Title IX Coordinator shall fulfill designated responsibilities to ensure adequate
nondiscrimination procedures are in place, to recommend new procedures or modifications to
procedures and to monitor the implementation of the district's nondiscrimination procedures in the
following areas as appropriate:

1. Curriculum and Materials - Review of curriculum guides, textbooks and supplemental materials for
discriminatory bias. 
 

2. Training - Provide training for students and staff to prevent, identify and alleviate problems of
discrimination. 
 

3. Resources - Maintain and provide information to staff on resources available to complainants in
addition to the school complaint procedure or Title IX procedures, such as making reports to the
police, available supportive measures such as assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis
programs and community health resources including counseling resources. 
 

4. Student Access - Review of programs, activities and practices to ensure that all students have
equal access and are not segregated except when permissible by law or regulation. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1092
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


 
5. District Support - Assure that like aspects of the school programs and activities receive like

support as to staffing and compensation, facilities, equipment, and related areas.[37] 
 

6. Student Evaluation - Review of assessments, procedures, and guidance and counseling materials
for stereotyping and discrimination. 
 

7. Reports/Formal Complaints - Monitor and provide technical assistance to individuals involved in
managing informal reports and formal complaints.

Guidelines
 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Training Requirements
 
The Compliance Officer/Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), or any individual
designated to facilitate an informal resolution process related to Title IX sexual harassment shall receive
training, as required or appropriate to their specific role.
 
All training materials shall promote impartial investigations and adjudications of formal complaints of
Title IX sexual harassment without relying on sex stereotypes.
 
All training materials shall be posted on the district’s website.
 
Disciplinary Consequences
 
A student who is determined to be responsible for violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action consistent with the Code of Student Conduct, which may include but is not limited to:
[18][19][20]

1. Loss of school privileges. 
 

2. Permanent transfer to another school building, classroom or school bus. 
 

3. Exclusion from school-sponsored activities. 
 

4. Detention. 
 

5. Suspension. 
 

6. Expulsion. 
 

7. Referral to law enforcement officials.

An employee who violates this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action consistent with
the applicable Board policy, collective bargaining agreement and individual contract, up to and including
dismissal and/or referral to law enforcement officials.[21]
 
Reports of Discrimination
 
Any reports of discrimination that are reviewed by the Title IX Coordinator and do not meet the
definition of Title IX sexual harassment but are based on race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, ancestry, national origin, marital status, pregnancy or handicap/disability
shall follow the Discrimination Complaint Procedures in Administrative Guideline 103AG2.
 
Reports of Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
Any reports deemed by the Title IX Coordinator to meet the definition of sexual harassment under Title
IX shall follow the Title IX Sexual Harassment Procedures and Grievance Process for Formal Complaints
in Administrative Guideline 103AG3.
 
Other Reports



 
Any reports reviewed by the Title IX Coordinator which do not meet the definition of Title IX sexual
harassment or discrimination of a protected class will be processed under the relevant Board policy.
 
Right to Alternative Complaint Procedure
 
Nothing in this policy shall deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse to
address concerns relating to prohibited harassment including initiating civil action, filing a complaint
with outside agencies or seeking redress under state or federal law.

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 12.1

2. 22 PA Code 12.4

3. 22 PA Code 15.1 et seq

4. 22 PA Code 4.4

5. 24 P.S. 1301

6. 24 P.S. 1310

7. 24 P.S. 1601-C et seq

8. 24 P.S. 5004

9. 43 P.S. 951 et seq

10. 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq

11. 34 CFR Part 106

12. 29 U.S.C. 794

13. 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq

14. 42 U.S.C. 1981 et seq

15. 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq

16. U.S. Const. Amend. XIV, Equal Protection Clause

17. Pol. 103.1

18. Pol. 113.1

19. Pol. 218

20. Pol. 233

21. Pol. 317

22. Pol. 806

23. Pol. 113.2

24. Pol. 113.3

25. Pol. 218.4

26. 24 P.S. 1318.1

27. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

28. 34 CFR 106.44

29. 34 CFR 106.45

30. 34 CFR 106.71

31. 34 CFR Part 99

32. 34 CFR 106.30

33. Pol. 113

34 34 U S C 12291

http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.1.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter12/s12.4.html&d=reduce
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter15/chap15toc.html&d=
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/022/chapter4/s4.4.html&d=reduce
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=1&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=014&chpt=16C
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1961&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=341&chpt=0&sctn=4&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-106
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-V
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv
https://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=13&sctn=18&subsctn=1
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291


34. 34 U.S.C. 12291

35. 20 U.S.C. 1092

36. 34 CFR 106.8

37. Pol. 150

18 Pa. C.S.A. 2709

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

28 CFR Part 35

28 CFR Part 41

34 CFR Part 100

34 CFR Part 104

34 CFR Part 110

U.S. Const. Amend. I

Bostock v. Clayton County, 590 U.S., 140 S. Ct. 1731 (2020)

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, 526 U.S. 629 (1999)

Franklin v. Gwinnett County Public Schools, 503 U.S. 60 (1992)

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, 524 U.S. 274 (1998)

Office for Civil Rights - Resources for Addressing Racial Harassment

Pol. 122

Pol. 123

Pol. 138

Pol. 216

Pol. 220

Pol. 247

Pol. 249

Pol. 251

Pol. 252

Pol. 320

Pol. 352

Pol. 701

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1092
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=27&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-33
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-35
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-41
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-100
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-104
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-110
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/first_amendment
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/raceharassresources.html


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting Staff

Code 104

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised September 29, 2020

Prior Revised Dates 3/25/2019

 Authority
 
The Board declares it to be the policy of this district to provide to all persons equal access to all
categories of employment in this district, regardless of race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, ancestry, national origin, marital
status, genetic information, pregnancy, or handicap/disability. The district shall make reasonable
accommodations for identified physical and mental impairments that constitute disabilities, consistent
with the requirements of federal and state laws and regulations.[1][2][3][4][5][6][7][8][9][10][11][12]
 
The Board also declares it to be the policy of this district to comply with federal law and regulations
under Title IX prohibiting sexual harassment, which is a form of unlawful discrimination on the basis of
sex. Such discrimination shall be referred to throughout this policy as Title IX sexual harassment.
Inquiries regarding the application of Title IX to the district may be referred to the Title IX Coordinator,
to the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education, or both.
 
The Board directs that the foregoing statement of Board policy be included in each student and staff
handbook, and that this policy and related administrative guidelines be posted to the district’s website.
 
The Board requires a notice stating that the district does not discriminate in any manner, including Title
IX sexual harassment, in any district education program or activity, to be issued to all students,
parents/guardians, employment applicants, employees and all unions or professional organizations
holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the district. All discrimination notices and
information shall include the title, office address, telephone number and email address of the
individual(s) designated as the Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator.
 
Reports of Title IX Sexual Harassment and Other Discrimination and Retaliation
 
The Board encourages employees and third parties who believe they or others have been subject to Title
IX sexual harassment, other discrimination or retaliation to promptly report such incidents to the
building principal or building administrator. A person who is not an intended victim or target of
discrimination but is adversely affected by the offensive conduct may file a report of discrimination.
 
If the building principal or building administrator is the subject of a complaint, the complainant or the
individual making the report shall direct the report of the incident to the Title IX Coordinator.
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1959&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=694&chpt=0&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-106
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/206
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/chapter-14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-VI
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21F
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv


The complainant or the individual making the report may use the Discrimination/Sexual
Harassment/Retaliation Report Form (104AG1) for purposes of reporting an incident or incidents in
writing; however, verbal reports of an incident or incidents shall be accepted, documented and the
procedures of this policy and the relevant administrative guidelines followed.
 
The building principal or building administrator shall promptly notify the Title IX Coordinator of all
reports of discrimination, Title IX sexual harassment or retaliation. The Title IX Coordinator shall
promptly contact the complainant regarding the report to gather additional information as necessary,
and to discuss the availability of supportive measures. The Title IX Coordinator shall consider the
complainant’s wishes with respect to supportive measures.
 
The Title IX Coordinator shall conduct an assessment to determine whether the reported circumstances
are most appropriately addressed through the Discrimination Complaint Procedures prescribed in
104AG2, or if the reported circumstances meet the definition of Title IX sexual harassment and are most
appropriately addressed through the Title IX Sexual Harassment Procedures and Grievance Process for
Formal Complaints in 104AG3, or other Board policies.
 
Disciplinary Procedures when Reports Allege Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
When a report alleges Title IX sexual harassment, disciplinary sanctions may not be imposed until the
completion of the grievance process for formal complaints outlined in 104AG3. The district shall
presume that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged conduct until a determination has been
made at the completion of the grievance process for formal complaints.
 
Administrative Leave –
 
When an employee, based on an individualized safety and risk analysis, poses an immediate threat to
the health or safety of any student or other individual, the employee may be removed on an emergency
basis.
 
An accused, nonstudent district employee may be placed on administrative leave during the pendency of
the grievance process for formal complaints, consistent with all rights under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act, and in accordance with state law and
regulations, Board policy and an applicable collective bargaining agreement or individual contract.
 
Confidentiality
 
Confidentiality of all parties, witnesses, the allegations, the filing of a report and the investigation
related to any form of discrimination or retaliation, including Title IX sexual harassment, shall be
handled in accordance with applicable law, regulations, this policy, the administrative guidelines and the
district's legal and investigative obligations.[13][14][15][16][17]
 
Retaliation
 
The Board prohibits retaliation by the district or any other person against any person for:[16]

1. Reporting or making a formal complaint of any form of discrimination or retaliation, including Title
IX sexual harassment. 
 

2. Testifying, assisting, participating or refusing to participate in a related investigation, process or
other proceeding or hearing. 
 

3. Acting in opposition to practices the person reasonably believes to be discriminatory.

The district, its employees and others are prohibited from intimidating, threatening, coercing, or
discriminating against anyone for actions described above. Individuals are encouraged to contact the
Title IX Coordinator immediately if they believe retaliation has occurred.
 
Definitions
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


Complainant shall mean an individual who is alleged to be the victim.
 
Respondent shall mean an individual alleged to be the perpetrator of the discriminatory or harassing
conduct.
 
Discrimination
 
Discrimination shall mean to treat individuals differently, or to harass or victimize based on a
protected classification including race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, ancestry, national origin, marital status, genetic information, pregnancy, or handicap/disability.
 
Harassment is a form of discrimination based on the protected classifications listed in this policy
consisting of unwelcome conduct such as graphic, written, electronic, verbal or nonverbal acts including
offensive jokes, slurs, epithets and name-calling, ridicule or mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive
objects or pictures, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, or other conduct that may be harmful or
humiliating or interfere with a person’s work performance including when:[9]

1. Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an employee’s
status; or 
 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment-related decisions
affecting an employee; or 
 

3. Such conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that a reasonable person in the
complainant’s position would find that it unreasonably interferes with the complainant’s
performance at work or otherwise creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working
environment such that it alters the complainant’s working conditions.

Definitions Related to Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
Formal complaint shall mean a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator
alleging Title IX sexual harassment and requesting that the district investigate the allegation under the
grievance process for formal complaints. The authority for the Title IX Coordinator to sign a formal
complaint does not make the Title IX Coordinator a party in the grievance process for formal
complaints. The phrase “document filed by a complainant” refers to a document or electronic
submission that contains the complainant’s physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicates that the
complainant is the person filing the formal complaint.[15][18]
 
Supportive measures shall mean nondisciplinary, nonpunitive individualized services offered as
appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent
before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal complaint has been filed.[18]
 
Supportive measures shall be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the educational
program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to
protect the safety of all parties or the educational environment, or to deter sexual harassment.
Supportive measures may include, but are not limited to:[18]

1. Counseling or Employee Assistance Program. 
 

2. Extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments. 
 

3. Mutual restrictions on contact between the parties. 
 

4. Changes in work locations. 
 

5. Leaves of absence. 
 

6. Increased security. 
 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-VI
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


7. Monitoring of certain areas of the campus. 
 

8. Assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis programs. 
 

9. Assistance from community health resources including counseling resources. 
 

10. Modifications of work or class schedules. 
 

11. Campus escort services.

Title IX sexual harassment means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the
following:[18]

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or district service on an
individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct, commonly referred to as quid pro quo
sexual harassment. 
 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive and objectively
offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to a district education program or activity. 
 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence or stalking. 
 

a. Dating violence means violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim and where the existence of such
a relationship is determined by the following factors:[19] 
 

i. Length of relationship. 
 

ii. Type of relationship. 
 

iii. Frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. 
 

b. Domestic violence includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a
current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim
shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the
victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the
victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving federal
funding, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that
person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.[19] 
 

c. Sexual assault means a sexual offense under state or federal law that is classified as a
forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation.[20] 
 

d. Stalking, under Title IX means stalking on the basis of sex, for example when the stalker
desires to date a victim. Stalking means to engage in a course of conduct directed at a
specific person that would cause a reasonable person to either:[19] 
 

i. Fear for their safety or the safety of others. 
 

ii. Suffer substantial emotional distress.

Such conduct must have taken place during a district education program or activity and against a
person in the United States to qualify as sexual harassment under Title IX. An education program or
activity includes the locations, events or circumstances over which the district exercises substantial
control over both the respondent and the context in which the harassment occurs. Title IX applies to all
of a district’s education programs or activities, whether such programs or activities occur on-campus or
off-campus.[14][15][18]

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1092
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
In order to maintain a program of nondiscrimination practices that is in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, the Board designates the Director of Human Resources or designee as the district's
Compliance Officer and the Director of Equity and Assessment or designee as the Title IX
Coordinator.[21]
 
The Compliance Officer/Title IX Coordinator can be contacted at:
 

Address: 782 Springdale Drive, Exton PA 19341
Email: complianceofficerjulmer@wcasd.net
Phone: 484-266-1006

 
The Title IX Coordinator can be contacted at:
 

Address: 782 Springdale Drive, Exton PA 19341
Email: titleIXcoordinator@wcasd.net
Phone: 484-266-1201

 
The Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator shall fulfill designated responsibilities to ensure
adequate nondiscrimination procedures are in place, to recommend new procedures or modifications to
procedures, and to monitor the implementation of the district's nondiscrimination procedures in the
following areas, as appropriate:

1. Review - Review of personnel practices and actions for discriminatory bias and compliance with
laws against discrimination to include monitoring and recommending corrective measures when
appropriate to written position qualifications, job descriptions, and essential job functions;
recruitment materials and practices; procedures for screening applicants; application and
interviewing practices for hiring and promotions; district designed performance evaluations;
review of planned employee demotions, non-renewal of contracts, and proposed
employee disciplinary actions up to and including termination. 
 

2. Training - Provide training for supervisors and staff to prevent, identify, and alleviate problems of
employment discrimination.  
 

3. Resources - Maintain and provide information to staff on resources available to alleged victims in
addition to the school complaint procedure or Title IX procedures, such as making reports to the
police, and available supportive measures such as assistance from domestic violence or rape crisis
programs, and community health resources including counseling resources.  
 

4. Reports/Formal Complaints - Monitor and provide technical assistance to individuals involved in
managing informal reports and formal complaints.

Guidelines
 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Training Requirements
 
The Compliance Officer and Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), or any individual
designated to facilitate an informal resolution process related to Title IX sexual harassment shall receive
the following training, as required or appropriate to their specific role.
 
All training materials shall promote impartial investigations and adjudications of formal complaints of
Title IX sexual harassment without relying on sex stereotypes.
 
All training materials shall be posted on the district’s website.
 
Disciplinary Consequences
 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf


An employee who violates this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action consistent with
the applicable Board policy, collective bargaining agreement and individual contract, up to and including
dismissal and/or referral to law enforcement officials.[22][23]
 
Reports of Discrimination
 
Any reports of discrimination that are reviewed by the Title IX Coordinator and do not meet the
definition of Title IX sexual harassment but are based on race, color, age, creed, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, ancestry, genetic information, national origin, marital status, pregnancy or
handicap/disability shall follow the Discrimination Complaint Procedures in Administrative Guideline
104AG2.
 
Reports of Title IX Sexual Harassment
 
Any reports deemed by the Title IX Coordinator to meet the definition of sexual harassment under Title
IX shall follow the Title IX Sexual Harassment Procedures and Grievance Process for Formal Complaints
in Administrative Guideline 104AG3.
 
Other Reports
 
Any reports reviewed by the Title IX Coordinator which do not meet the definition of Title IX sexual
harassment or discrimination of a protected class, will be processed under the relevant Board policy.
 
Right to an Alternative Complaint Procedure
 
Nothing in this policy shall deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse to
address concerns relating to prohibited harassment including initiating civil action, filing a complaint
with outside agencies or seeking redress under state or federal law.



Legal 1. 43 P.S. 336.3

2. 43 P.S. 951 et seq

3. 34 CFR Part 106

4. 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq

5. 29 U.S.C. 206

6. 29 U.S.C. 621 et seq

7. 29 U.S.C. 794

8. 42 U.S.C. 1981 et seq

9. 42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq

10. 42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq

11. 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq

12. U.S. Const. Amend. XIV, Equal Protection Clause

13. 20 U.S.C. 1232g

14. 34 CFR 106.44

15. 34 CFR 106.45

16. 34 CFR 106.71

17. 34 CFR Part 99

18. 34 CFR 106.30

19. 34 U.S.C. 12291

20. 20 U.S.C. 1092

21. 34 CFR 106.8

22. Pol. 317

23. Pol. 806

16 PA Code 44.1 et seq

18 Pa. C.S.A. 2709

28 CFR 35.140

28 CFR Part 41

29 CFR Parts 1600-1691

EEOC Enforcement Guidance on Harris v. Forklift Sys., Inc., November 9, 1993

EEOC Enforcement Guidance on Vicarious Employer Liability for Unlawful Harassment by
Supervisors, June 18, 1999

EEOC Policy Guidance on Current Issues of Sexual Harassment, March 19, 1990

Burlington Industries, Inc. v. Ellerth, 524 U.S. 742 (1998)

Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, 524 U.S. 775 (1998)

Pol. 252

Pol. 320

Pol. 352

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1959&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=694&chpt=0&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1955&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0222.
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-106
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/chapter-38
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/206
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/chapter-14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/794
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-I
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21/subchapter-VI
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-21F
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-126
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/amendmentxiv
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1232g
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/34/12291
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1092
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-19/pdf/2020-10512.pdf
http://pacodeandbulletin.gov/Display/pacode?file=/secure/pacode/data/016/chapter44/chap44toc.html&d=
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=18&div=0&chpt=27&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/35.140
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/28/part-41
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/chapter-XIV
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harris.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/harassment.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/policy/docs/currentissues.html


 

  

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Pupil Services Committee 

October 25, 2021 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
Approval of one (1) special education settlement agreement 
 
Approval is requested of one (1) special education settlement agreement. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Pupil Services Meeting Minutes 
October 11, 2021 

Pupil Services Committee Meeting 

 

 
Ms. Tiernan opened the meeting at 7:17 pm.  
 

Attending Committee Members: Sue Tiernan, Daryl Durnell, Kate Shaw 

 

Other Board Members: Randell Spackman, Karen Hermann, Chris McCune, Gary Bevilacqua 

 

Administration: Robert Sokolowski, Kalia Reynolds, Tammi Florio, Michael Wagman, Dawn 
Mader, Sara Missett 
 
Items listed on the agenda: 

• September 13, 2021 Committee Meeting Minutes    

• Major Pupil Services Goal areas 21-22     
      
      

Actions and Outcomes:  

• Approval of the September 13, 2021 Committee Meeting Minutes Vote: 3-0 
   
Items to be placed on upcoming Board Agenda: None 
 
Items to be placed on the Consent Agenda: None 

  
Items to be discussed at a later date: None 

 

Comments from the audience: 

None 

The meeting ended at 7:28 pm. 

 

 

Next Meeting:  Monday, November 8, 2021 – 7:00 pm 



 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 
October 25, 2021 – ACTION ITEMS 

 
 

 

Approval to Commit/Assign Fund Balances and to Complete Transfers from the 
General Fund to Other Funds 
 
Approval is requested to commit fund balances for health care stabilization in the 
amount of $4,159,909, alternative education in the amount of $2,000,000, enrollment 
growth in the amount of $4,500,000, property assessment fluctuations in the amount of 
$1,000,000, technology/distance learning in the amount of $500,000, and to assign a 
fund balance for millage stabilization in the amount of $38,183,867.  Approval is also 
requested for a transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund in the 
amount of $6,167,541 and approval is also requested for a transfer of $1,465,981 in 
refunding savings from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2020-21 Budget Transfers 
 
Approval is requested for the 2020-21 Budget Transfers 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of Addendum to School Aged Child Care Services Agreement 
 
Approval is requested for the Addendum to the School Aged Child Care Services 
Agreement. 
 
I so move. 
 

Approval of Revised Board Policy 006 Meetings, First Reading 
 
Approval is requested for revised Board Policy 006 Meetings, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Revised Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order, First Reading 
 
Approval is requested for revised Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 

-continued on Page 2- 



Property & Finance Committee 
ACTION ITEMS 10/25/21 
Page 2 
 

 
 
Approval of Revised Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings, 
First Reading 
 
Approval is requested for revised Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board 
Meetings, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval to Retire Board Policy 006.3, Agendas 
 
Approval is requested to retire Board Policy 006.3 Agendas. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2022-23 Building Budget Allocations 
 
Approval is requested for the per pupil allocation factor of $134.20 per weighted pupil 
for the 2022-23 fiscal year. The weighting factors will be 1 for full-time kindergarten and 
elementary students, 1.06 for middle school students, and 1.43 for high school students. 
The fixed activity expense budget totals $612,360 for all 6 secondary schools which 
includes $154,350 per high school and $49,770 per middle school. The total 2022-23 
building budget allocation is $2,491,398. 
 
I so move. 
 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

October 18, 2021 – Property & Finance Committee 
Greystone Elementary School, L.G.I. 

1195 Aram Avenue, West Chester, PA  19380 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Mr. Gary Bevilacqua-Chair, Mr. Brian Gallen, Dr. Karen 
Herrmann, Mr. Randell Spackman 
Other Board Members:  Mr. Daryl Durnell, Mr. Chris McCune, Dr. Kate Shaw, Mrs. Sue 
Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. Robert Sokolowski, Mr. Wayne Bister, Mr. Justin 
Matys, Mr. Michael Wagman 
Also Present:  Members of the public 
 
Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.) 
Public Comment was made by the following residents on agenda items as indicated: 

1. Judi DiFonzo:  Board Policy 903 – Increase in the time limit for public comment 
2. Stacey Whomsley:  Board Policy 903 – Increase in the time limit for public 

comment 
The committee approved the September 20, 2021 Property & Finance 
Committee Minutes. 

Mr. 
Bevilacqua 

Mr. Scully reviewed the Budget Forecast Model and the changes from the 
previous model on pages 5 and 6.  2020-21 changes to expenses include 
reductions of $11,910 in Professional & Technical Services and $5,184 in 
membership fees and dues. 2020-21 increases in expenses include $2,532 
related to Benefits, $368,309 in Other Services (charter school tuitions), 
and $7,787 in supplies. The 2020-21 revenues include an increase of 
$52,962 in federal revenue. The net of all 2020-21 changes in October 
result in a decrease of $308,576 in the ending fund balance designated for 
future millage increases. Mr. Scully reviewed the changes to the 2021-22 
projections which include increases of $65,000 related to Salaries and 
$27,684 related to Benefits for the community engagement specialist, a 
decrease in expenses of $51,031 in supplies related to the Per Pupil 
Adjustment.  Increases in revenue projections for 2021-22 include 
$500,000 in Transfer Tax and $92,684 in Federal CARES revenue used to 
fund the community engagement specialist.  The net of all changes in 
October resulted in a 2021-22 budget gap decrease of $242,455.  Mr. 
Scully reviewed the summary of all funds, page 24, which shows the budget 
gap after an ACT1 tax increase to be $2,893,000.  This is an informational 
item and no Board action is required. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully reviewed the enrollment projections for 2022-23 and advised the 
committee that the 2022-23 projection is 12,161 students which represents 
an increase of 68 students. Enrollment projections are based on cohort 
survival calculation method and do not include new student growth. The 
Hybrid average retention method was used to project future years’ 
enrollment.   Mr. Scully reminded the committee that these projections will 
be used to plan for building budgets as well as staffing needs for 2022-23.  
This is an informational item and no Board action is required.  

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully reviewed the 2022-23 Building Budget Allocation (PPA) and per 
pupil spending analysis report that was included in the packet.  The total 
allocation is $2,491,398 which is $61,979 less than projected in the 

Mr. Scully 



Forecast Model. Mr. Scully reviewed the process in determining the 
weighting factors, PPA factor and the fixed activity amounts.  The PPA 
factor for 2022-23 remains unchanged from the 2021-22 factor of $134.20.  
Weighting factors were kept consistent for elementary and secondary 
schools. The recommended 2022-23 fixed activity budgets were also kept 
consistent for middle and high schools. The committee recommended 
approval of the 2022-23 Building Budget Allocation. 
Mr. Scully advised the Committee that A Child’s Place (ACP) has been 
providing before and after school programs in the District’s elementary 
schools since 2012.  The current 5-year contract, due to expire on June 30, 
2022, based annual fixed rent payments on estimated enrollments and 
space utilization.  In March of 2020, with the onset of Covid-19, the District 
relieved the rent obligations for the period of March 13, 2020 through June 
2020.  In September of 2020, the District and ACP agreed to a prorated 
annual rent based on actual student days in person due to school closures 
and hybrid instruction models.  As of September 30, 2021, ACP’s 
enrollment is 425 children, down from 800 in 2017-18 when the contract 
originated.  ACP and the District believe the lower than anticipated 
enrollment is based on a lack of need due to a change in work schedules for 
our parents.   Many resident parents are still working from home which 
alleviates the need for before/after school care. The current contract calls 
for a fixed annual rent payment of $225,000 for the current school year.  
Due to the lack of enrollment and reduced space requirements, the 
Administration recommends reducing the fixed annual rent for the 2021-22 
school year to $125,000.   This reduction will only apply to the 2021-22 
school year and a new 5-year contract will be negotiated for School Aged 
Child Care Services for the 2022-23 school year. The committee 
recommended approval of the Addendum to the Contract with A Child’s 
Place. 

Mr. Scully 

Dr. Sokolowski reviewed changes to Board Policies. Due to the Sunshine Act 
Amendments – Act 65 of 2021, changes need to be made to policies related 
to board meetings. Policy 006 Meetings. The revised policy includes an 
agenda section as well as a section on amendments to the agenda, which is 
part of the new law. There are also additions and edits to the voting section 
regarding the number of affirmative votes required for certain motions to 
pass. Policy 006.2 Rules of Order. The policy now reflects the Board’s 
current order of business with public comments coming before any vote is 
taken.  #24. Public input and #27. Minutes have been eliminated as they 
are more comprehensively covered in Policy 903 and 006 respectively. 
Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings. In accordance with 
the new law, revisions were made to allow for additional public comment 
should an agenda item be added after the public comment period has 
ended. In addition, public comment at committee meetings wording was 
adjusted to reflect our current practice along with our registration 
procedure.  Policy 006.3 Agendas. Now that there is an agenda section 
listed under revised Policy 006.2 – Rules of Order, this policy is redundant 
and will be retired.  The Committee recommended approval of all policy 
changes. 

Dr. 
Sokolowski 

Items to be placed on board agenda October 25, 2021: 
• Approval of 2022-23 Building Budget Allocations 
• Approval of Addendum to School Aged Child Care Services Agreement 



• Approval of Revised Board Policy 006 Meetings, First Reading 
• Approval of Revised Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order, First Reading 
• Approval of Revised Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings, First 

Reading 
• Approval to Retire Board Policy 006.3 Agendas 
 
MEMO items for board agenda October 25, 2021: 
• Approval to Commit/Assign Fund Balances and to Complete Transfers from the 

General Fund to Other Funds 
• Approval of 2020-21 Budget Transfers 
Items to discuss at a later date: 
  
  

Next Meeting Date:   November 15, 2021 



ADDENDUM TO SCHOOL AGED CHILD CARE SERVICES 
 
 This Addendum to School Aged Child Care Services is made and entered into 
this 25th day of October, 2021 by and between West Chester Area School District 
(“District”) and A Child’s Place Extended Care, a child care provider doing business in 
Chester County, Pennsylvania (“Contractor”).  In exchange for the mutual consideration 
identified herein and intending to be legally bound, District and Contractor agree to 
modify the terms for the 2021-2022 school year from their original School Aged Child 
Care Services agreement, entered into on or about April 24, 2017 (the “Original 
Agreement”).   
 

1. Acknowledgement of Factors.  District and Contractor acknowledge and 
agree that enrollment, staffing and space utilization factors have prompted their mutual 
interest to enter into this Addendum:  

a. The Original Agreement includes terms under which Contractor is to 
provide safe and reliable child care services to District resident students 
during the 2021-2022 school year.   
 

2. Original Agreement.  The previously executed Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect except to the extent modified as expressly set forth herein. 

 
3. Payments.  During the 2021-2022 school year, the parties agree to the 

following with regard to payment:  Contractor will make rental payments to the District 
based on a flat rental fee of $125,000 paid in equal installments over a 10-month period 
beginning September 1, 2021 and ending June 1, 2022.    

 
4. Dispute Resolution.  Any dispute arising under this Addendum that the 

parties cannot resolve amicably through negotiations or (upon mutual consent) through 
mediation shall be resolved through the administrative or judicial processes of the 
Chester County Court of Common Pleas, with both parties agreeing to waive any trial by 
jury. 
 

Each signatory to this Addendum warrants that he or she is duly authorized to 
execute this Second Addendum and to bind the respective party to these terms.  This 
Second Addendum may be executed in one or more counterparts. 

 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT A CHILD’S PLACE EXTENDED CARE 

 
 

By: _____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 Print Title:                  Print Title:  
 

Date: ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Meetings

Code 006

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised October 22, 2018

Rules of Order
 
All Board meetings shall be conducted in an orderly and business-like manner and guided by Robert's
Rules of Order or other previously agreed upon rules by the Board (Policy 006.2) shall be followed and
be consistent with law, state regulations, or Board procedures.[1][2][3]
 
Quorum
 
A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the Board. No business shall be transacted at a
meeting without a quorum, but the Board members present at such a meeting may adjourn to another
time.[4]
 
Presiding Officer
 
The President shall preside at all Board meetings. In the absence, disability, or disqualification of the
President, the Vice-President shall act instead. If neither person is present, a Board member shall be
elected President pro tempore by a plurality of those present to preside at that meeting only.[5][6][7]
[8]
 
Notice
 
Notice of all public Board meetings, including committee meetings and work sessions, shall be given by
publication of the date, place, and time of such meetings in the newspaper(s) of general circulation
designated by the Board and posting of such notice at the administrative offices of the Board.[9][10]

1. Notice of regular meetings shall be given by publication and posting of a schedule showing the
date, place, and time of all regular meetings for the calendar year at least three (3) days prior to
the time of the first regular meeting.[9][10] 
 

2. Notice of all special meetings shall be given by publication and posting of notice at least twenty-
four (24) hours prior to the time of the meeting, except that such notice shall be waived when a
special meeting is called to deal with an actual emergency involving a clear and present danger to
life or property.[9][10] 
 

3. Notice of all rescheduled meetings shall be given by publication and posting of notice at least
twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the meeting.[9][10] 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=22&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=27&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=28&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0


 
4. Notice of all recessed or reconvened meetings shall be given by posting a notice of the place, date

and time of the meeting and sending copies of such notice to interested parties.[9] 
 

5. Notice of all public meetings shall be given to any newspaper(s) circulating in Chester County and
any radio or television station which so requests. Notice of all public meetings shall be given to
any individual who so requests and provides a stamped, self-addressed envelope for such
notification.[10]

Notice of all rescheduled meetings and special meetings shall be given to Board members no later than
twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the meeting.[10][11]
 
Agenda
 

The agenda, together with all relevant reports, shall be provided to each Board or committee
member sufficiently prior to the board meeting if at all possible, to permit them to give items
of business careful consideration.
 

The district shall publicly post the agenda for all public meetings of the Board or Board
committees at which deliberation or official action may take place no later than twenty-four
(24) hours prior to the time of the meeting, as follows:

1. On the district’s website.
2. At the location of the meeting.
3. At the district’s administrative office.

The posted agenda shall list each matter of agency business that will or may be the
subject of deliberation or official action at the meeting.

 

Board Business Meetings
It shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent, in collaboration with the Board President
and Board Committee recommendations, to prepare an agenda of the items of business
anticipated to come before the Board at each public Board meeting.
 

Board Committee Meetings
It shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent or designee, in collaboration with the
Board Committee Chairperson assigned to that particular committee, to prepare an agenda of
the items of business anticipated to come before the Board committee at each public Board
committee meeting.
 

Board Retreats, Planning Sessions, Orientation Sessions
The Board President, in collaboration with all Board members, and with the Superintendent
as requested, will set the agendas for Board retreats, planning sessions, and orientation
sessions.
 

District Task Force Meetings
The Superintendent or assigned administrator will set the agendas for district task force
meetings.
 

Other Meetings

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=23&subsctn=0


Depending on the intent of any other type of meeting not covered in this policy, the agenda
will be set by the person designated by the Superintendent and the Board President. If there
is any disagreement by other Board members, it will be determined by a vote of the Board
majority.
 
 

Amendment to the Agenda

The Board may deliberate or take official action on matters not included in a posted
agenda only under the following circumstances:

Emergencies – The matter of business relates to a real or potential emergency involving
a clear and present danger to life or property.

Business Arising Within Twenty-Four (24) Hours Prior to the Meeting – The matter of
business has arisen within twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting, is de minimis
(minor) in nature, and does not involve the expenditure of funds or entering into a
contract or agreement.

Business Raised by Residents or Taxpayers During the Meeting – When a matter of
Board business is raised by a resident or taxpayer during a meeting:

1. The Board may take official action to refer the matter to staff, if applicable, to
conduct research and include on a future Board meeting agenda; or

2.  If the matter is de minimis (minor) in nature and does not involve the
expenditure of funds or entering into a contract or agreement, the Board may take
official action on the matter.

Majority Vote – During a meeting, the Board may add a matter of business to the posted
agenda by a majority vote of the Board present and voting. The reason for adding an item
to the posted agenda must be announced at the meeting before conducting the vote. Once
announced and approved by majority vote, the Board may take official action on the item of
business. The agenda shall be amended to reflect the new item of business and the
amended agenda shall be posted to the district’s website and at the administrative office no
later than the first business day following the meeting at which the agenda was amended.

The unanimous consent procedure may not be used in place of majority vote for this
purpose.

The public posting of agenda requirements and rules for adding items to a posted agenda
apply to both regular and special open meetings of the Board and to Board committee
meetings. These requirements and rules do not apply to:

1. Conference sessions.

2. Executive sessions.

 
Regular Meetings
 
Regular Board meetings shall be public and shall be held at specified places at least once every two (2)
months.[2][12]

1. Agenda 

Agendas, together with supporting materials, shall be prepared and provided to Board members
and to the public, upon request, in accordance with Board policy.[13] 
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=21&subsctn=0


2. Order of Business 

The order of business for regular meetings shall be as outlined in applicable Board policy.[3]

Special Meetings
 
Special meetings may be called for special or general purposes and shall be public except when
conducted as an executive session for purposes authorized by law.[2][6][11][52]
 
The President may call a special meeting at any time and shall call a special meeting upon presentation
of the written requests of three (3) Board members. Upon the President's failure or refusal to call a
special meeting, such meeting may be called at any time by a majority of the Board members.[6]
 
No business shall be transacted at any special meeting except that named in the call sent to members
for such special meeting.[11]
 
Public Participation
 
District residents present at a Board meeting may address the Board in An opportunity for public
comment will be provided in accordance with law and Board procedures and policy.[2][14]
 
Voting
 
All motions shall require for adoption a majority vote of the Board or as required by state law.
 
All votes on motions and resolutions shall be by voice vote unless an oral roll call vote is requested by
the President or another Board member.

1. The following actions require the recorded affirmative votes of all members of the Board
remaining in office:

a. Appoint as Board Secretary a former school director who has resigned, before the
expiration of the term for which the member was elected.

b. Appoint as solicitor a former school director who has resigned before the
expiration of the term for which the director was elected. 
 

2. The following actions require the recorded affirmative votes of two-thirds (2/3) of the full number
of Board members (six (6) votes): 
 

a. Transfer of budgeted funds during the first three (3) months of the fiscal year.[15][16] 
 

b. Incur a temporary debt to meet an emergency or catastrophe.[16] 
 

c. Elect to a teaching position a person who has served as a Board member and who has
resigned before the end of the term for which the director was elected.[17] 
 

d. Convey land or buildings to the municipality co-terminus with the school district, certain
charities or fire or emergency services organizations in accordance with law.[18] 
 

e. Adopt or change textbooks without the recommendation of the Superintendent.[19] 
 

f. Dismiss, after a hearing, a tenured professional employee.[20] 
 

g. Fix the fiscal year to begin on the first day of January.[21] 
 

h. Incur certain temporary debt (nonemergency). 
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=25&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=87&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=87&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=8&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=11&sctn=29&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=71&subsctn=0


i. Borrowing in anticipation of current revenues. 
 

3. The following actions require the recorded affirmative votes of a majority of the full number of
Board members (five (5) votes): 
 

a. Fixing the length of school term.[22] 
 

b. Adopting textbooks recommended by the Superintendent.[22][23] 
 

c. Appointing the district Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent(s).[22][24][25] 
 

d. Appointing teachers and principals.[22] 
 

e. Adopting the annual budget.[22][26] 
 

f. Appointing tax collectors and other appointees.[22][27][28] 
 

g. Levying and assessing taxes.[22][29] 
 

h. Purchasing, selling, or condemning land.[22] 
 

i. Locating new buildings or changing the location of old ones.[22] 
 

j. Adopting planned instruction.[22][30] 
 

k. Establishing additional schools or departments.[22] 
 

l. Designating depositories for school funds.[22][31] 
 

m. Expending district funds. 
 

n. Authorizing the transfer of any unencumbered balance, or portion thereof, from one
appropriation to another, or from one spending agency to another during the last nine (9)
months of the fiscal year.[16][32] 
 

o. Entering into contracts of any kind, including contracts for the purchase of fuel or any
supplies where the amount involved exceeds $100 (including items subject to bid
requirements).[22][33] 
 

p. Fixing salaries or compensation of officers, teachers, or other appointees of the Board.[22] 
 

q. Combining or reorganizing into a larger school district.[34] 
 

r. Entering into contracts with and making appropriations to the intermediate unit for the
district's proportionate share of the cost of services provided or to be provided by the
intermediate unit.[22] 
 

s. Dismissing, after a hearing, a nontenured employee.[22][35][36] 
 

t. Adopting a corporate seal for the district.[37] 
 

u. Determining the location and amount of any real estate required by the school district for
school purposes.[38] 
 

v. Vacating and abandoning property to which the Board has title.[39] 
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=71&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=76&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=87&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=2&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=14&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=80&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=2&sctn=12&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0


w. Determining the holidays, other than those provided by statute, to be observed by special
exercises and those on which the schools shall be closed for the whole day.[40] 
 

x. Declaring that a vacancy exists on the Board by reason of the failure or neglect of a school
director to qualify.[41] 
 

y. Adopting, amending, or repealing Board procedures and policy.[42] 
 

z. Appointing a school director to fill a vacancy on the Board. 
 

aa. Creating or increasing indebtedness. 
 

4. All other actions require the recorded affirmative votes of a majority of a quorum of board
members present.

Minutes
 
The Board shall cause to be made, and shall retain as a permanent record of the district, minutes of all
open Board meetings. Said minutes shall be comprehensible and complete and shall show:[43][44]

1. Date, place, and time of the meeting. 
 

2. Names of Board members present. 
 

3. Presiding officer. 
 

4. Substance of all official actions. 
 

5. Actions taken. 
 

6. Recorded votes and a record by individual members of all roll call votes taken.[45] 
 

7. Names of all residents who appeared officially and the subject of their testimony. 
 

8. Any matter added to a posted agenda, including the substance of the matter, the
announced reason and the recorded vote, where applicable.

The Board Secretary shall provide each Board member with a copy of the minutes of the last meeting
prior to the next regular meeting.[1]
 
The minutes of Board meetings shall be approved at the next succeeding meeting and signed by the
Board Secretary.[46]
 
Notations and any tape or audiovisual recordings shall not be the official record of a public Board
meeting but may be available for public access, upon request, in accordance with Board policy. Any
notations and/or audiovisual recordings of a Board meeting shall be retained and disposed of in
accordance with applicable Board policy.[1][3][47][48]
 
Recess/Reconvene
 
The Board may at any time recess or reconvene to a reconvened meeting at a specified date and place,
upon the majority vote of those present. The reconvened meeting shall immediately take up its business
at the point in the agenda where the motion to recess was acted upon. Notice of the reconvened
meeting shall be given as provided in Board policy.[9][10][49]
 
Executive Session
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=33&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0


The Board may hold an executive session, which is not an open meeting, before, during, at the
conclusion of a public meeting, or at some other time. The presiding officer shall announce the reason
for holding the executive session; the announcement can be made at the public meeting prior to or after
the executive session.[50][51][52]
 
The Board may discuss the following matters in executive session:

1. Employment issues. 
 

2. Labor relations. 
 

3. Purchase or lease of real estate. 
 

4. Consultation with an attorney or other professional advisor regarding potential litigation or
identifiable complaints that may lead to litigation. 
 

5. Matters that must be conducted in private to protect a lawful privilege or confidentiality. 
 

6. School safety and security, of a nature that if conducted in public, would be reasonably likely to
impair the effectiveness of school safety measures or create a reasonable likelihood of
jeopardizing the safety or security of an individual or school, including a buildings,
public utility, resource, infrastructure, facility or information storage system.

Official actions based on discussions held in executive session shall be taken at a public meeting.
 
Work Sessions
 
The Board may meet as a Committee of the Whole in a public meeting to vote on or to discuss issues.
Public notice of such meetings shall be made in accordance with Board procedures.[2][49]
 
A meeting of the Committee of the Whole, not regularly scheduled, may be called at any time by the
President; the President shall call such a meeting when requested to do so in writing by three (3) by
Board members. Public notice of the meeting shall be made in accordance with Board procedures.
 
The Board Secretary shall provide notice of a meeting of the Committee of the Whole in accordance with
Board procedures.[9][10]
 
Committee Meetings
 
Standing committee meetings may be called at any time by the committee chairperson, with proper
public notice, or when requested to do so by at least two (2) members of the committee.[9][10][49]
 
A standing committee shall consist of four (4) board members. A standing committee may conduct
business when at least two (2) three (3) committee members are present.
 
Committee topics that are being recommended to the full board for consideration shall follow this
protocol:

1. If all four (4) committee members are present and all four (4) members vote in the affirmative,
the item may be placed on the consent agenda. 
 

2. If three (3) of the four (4) committee members are present and all three (3) members vote in the
affirmative, the item may be placed on the consent agenda. 
 

3. If two (2) of the four (4) committee members are present and the two (2) members vote in the
affirmative, the item shall be placed on the agenda as a nonconsent item.

Any committee member may request an agenda item coming out of committee be placed on the board
agenda as a nonconsent item.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=25&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0


 
Unless held as an executive session, standing committee meetings shall be open to the public, other
Board members, and the Superintendent.[2]
 
A majority of the committee or the chairperson may invite Board employees, consultants, or other
persons who have special knowledge of an area under discussion.

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 407

2. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq

3. Pol. 006.2

4. 24 P.S. 422

5. 24 P.S. 405

6. 24 P.S. 426

7. 24 P.S. 427

8. 24 P.S. 428

9. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 703

10. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 709

11. 24 P.S. 423

12. 24 P.S. 421

13. Pol. 006.3

14. Pol. 903

15. 24 P.S. 609

16. 24 P.S. 687

17. 24 P.S. 324

18. 24 P.S. 707

19. 24 P.S. 803

20. 24 P.S. 1129

21. 24 P.S. 671

22. 24 P.S. 508

23. Pol. 108

24. 24 P.S. 1071

25. 24 P.S. 1076

26. Pol. 604

27. Pol. 005

28. Pol. 606

29. Pol. 605

30. Pol. 107

31. 24 P.S. 621

32. Pol. 612

33. Pol. 610

34. 24 P.S. 224

35. 24 P.S. 514

36 24 P S 1080

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=22&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=27&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=28&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=9&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=87&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=3&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=8&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=11&sctn=29&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=71&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=71&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=76&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=21&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=2&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=14&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=80&subsctn=0


36. 24 P.S. 1080

37. 24 P.S. 212

38. 24 P.S. 702

39. 24 P.S. 708

40. 24 P.S. 1503

41. Pol. 004

42. Pol. 003

43. 24 P.S. 518

44. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 706

45. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 705

46. 24 P.S. 433

47. Pol. 800

48. Pol. 801

49. Pol. 006

50. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 707

51. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 708

52. 24 P.S. 425

24 P.S. 408

24 P.S. 634

24 P.S. 1075

24 P.S. 1077

24 P.S. 1111

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=80&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=2&sctn=12&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=15&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=6&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=5&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=33&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=25&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=8&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=6&sctn=34&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=75&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=10&sctn=77&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=11&sctn=11&subsctn=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Rules of Order

Code 006.2

Status First Reading

Adopted November 24, 2014

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes the value of structure at public School Board meetings.
 
Authority
 
The Board shall establish rules of order for all Board meetings necessary to conduct its meeting and to
maintain order.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The presiding officer at each public Board meeting shall follow the rules of the Board for the conduct of
public meetings in accordance with this policy and other applicable Board policies.[1][2][3]
 
The presiding officer shall require courtesy to prevail at all times. Improper language shall be silenced
and rude comments reprimanded. Failure to abide by the rules of order shall be sufficient cause for the
presiding officer to temporarily adjourn or recess any meeting. The presiding officer may reconvene the
meeting at an appropriate time for the conduct of business.
 
Guidelines

1. A quorum being present, precisely at the hour called, the President shall take the chair and
proceed to business.[1] 
 

2. Should a quorum be assembled at the hour appointed, and the President be absent, the Vice-
President, or a President pro tempore, elected by a plurality of those present, shall serve during
that meeting, or until the President shall appear. 
 

3. Should a quorum not assemble at the hour appointed, the Board members present shall be
competent to adjourn from time to time, that an opportunity may be given for a quorum to
assemble, without which no business can be legally transacted. 
 

4. In the transaction of a regular Board meeting, the following shall be included:

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
 



Roll Call 
 
Public Comment on Agenda Items
 
Approval of Minutes/Agenda
 
Superintendent’s Report 
 
Public Comment on Agenda Items 
 
Personnel Recommendations 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda-

Treasurer’s Report 
 
Financial Report

School Board/Committee Reports 
 
Other Business
 
Public Comments from Residents on Non-Agenda Items 
 
Adjournment

5. The presiding officer has no casting vote (cannot offer or second a motion) without turning over
the gavel. His/Her right is to vote on every question by virtue of membership on the Board. 
 

6. The presiding officer may speak to points of order in preference to other Board members, and
shall decide questions of order, subject to an appeal to the Board by any two (2) Board members. 
 

7. A motion made, must be seconded, and then repeated distinctly by the presiding officer or read
aloud before it is discussed. After discussion, a vote must be taken. Every motion shall be reduced
to writing if the presiding officer or any Board members require it. The seconding of a nomination
by one (1) or more Board members is voluntary.
 

8. Any Board member who shall have made a motion shall have liberty to withdraw it, with the
consent of the second, before any discussion has taken place, but not after the discussion is had
without leave being granted by the Board. 
 

9. There shall be no discussion or comment during any vote unless there has evidently been some
mistake, in which case the mistake shall be rectified and the presiding officer shall recommence
taking the vote. 
 

10. The consideration of any question may be postponed to a time fixed or the question may be
suppressed altogether by an indefinite postponement. 
 

11. A motion, once voted down, cannot be renewed at the same meeting of the Board without the
consent of a two-thirds majority of the members of the Board present. 
 

12. An amendment may be moved on any motion, and shall be decided before the original motion; but
no more than one (1) amendment to an amendment shall be entertained. 
 

13. If a motion under discussion is composed of two (2) or more parts, the presiding officer may have
it divided. A separate vote must be taken on each part. 
 



14. When any business is brought regularly before the Board, the consideration of the same cannot be
interrupted except by a motion: for adjournment; to lie on the table; for the previous question; for
postponement; for commitment; or for amendment. 
 

15. A motion for adjournment shall always be in order and shall be decided without discussion, except
that it cannot be entertained when the Board is voting on another question or while a Board
member is addressing the Board. 
 

16. When a blank is to be filled to complete a motion, the question shall be first taken to clarify the
motion. 
 

17. No Board member shall be interrupted while speaking, unless s/he is out of order, or for the
purpose of correcting mistakes or misrepresentations. 
 

18. The presiding officer shall require discussion on any subject to be pertinent to that subject, and no
Board member shall be allowed to indulge in personal reflections. 
 

19. If any Board member considers him/herself aggrieved by a decision of the chair, it shall be his/her
privilege to appeal to the Board, and the vote on such appeal shall be taken without discussion. 
 

20. It shall be the duty of the President to appoint all committees, except when the Board may decide
otherwise.[4] 
 

21. Any Board member may require a roll call vote on any question.[1] 
 

22. The first person recognized by the presiding officer as desiring to speak has the right to the floor. 
 

23. All communication shall be addressed to the presiding officer. The presiding officer may suspend
normal parliamentary procedure to facilitate discussion and may choose to limit the discussion. 
 

24. Public input (except executive sessions) is desirable. Parliamentary procedure shall prevail. Oral
presentations shall be entered on the agenda and shall be limited to two (2) minutes unless
specifically approved by the Board.[3] 

The Board requires that public participants be residents or taxpayers of this district or:

a. Anyone having registered a legitimate interest in a contemplated action of the Board. 
 

b. Anyone representing a group in the school district. 
 

c. Any representative of a firm eligible to bid on materials or services solicited by the Board. 
 

d. Any district employee. 
 

e. Any district student. 
 

25. In a roll call vote, order will be mover, seconder, random, with presiding officer last. An abstention
is not considered in determining a majority. 
 

26. A motion to move the question must be recognized by the presiding officer. If seconded, it must
be voted on without discussion. A call for the question shall be recognized by the presiding officer
as a statement by an individual that s/he is ready to proceed with the business at hand. 
 

27. Minutes of a public Board meeting are a legal record of actions taken. If a Board member wishes
verbatim remarks or discussion to be included as a part of the written record, the Board member
shall so state during the meeting. Absent dissent, the Board Secretary shall be required to include
that portion of the discussion as part of the minutes. Additions or corrections at a later date shall



be reserved for action taken. Verbatim remarks or discussion may be corrected only by deletion.
Videos and/or recordings, when available, are not the official record of the meeting. They are to be
used to verify accuracy of minutes and are only retained until official minutes of a meeting are
approved.

Legal 1. Pol. 006

2. Pol. 006.2

3. Pol. 903

4. Pol. 005

Pol. 006.1

Pol. 006.3



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Public Participation in Board Meetings

Code 903

Status First Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes the value to school governance of public comment on educational issues and the
importance of involving members of the public in Board meetings. Public comment is an opportunity for
the Board to hear comments from the public; it is not meant to be a question and answer period.
 
Authority
 
The Board shall establish guidelines adopts this policy to govern public participation in Board meetings
necessary to conduct its meeting and to maintain order.[1]
 
In order to permit fair and orderly expression of public comment, the Board shall provide an opportunity
at each open meeting of the Board for residents and taxpayers to comment on matters of concern,
official action, or deliberation before the Board prior to official action by the Board.[2]
 
If the Board determines there is not sufficient time at a meeting for public comments, the comment
period may be deferred to the next regular meeting or to a special meeting occurring before the next
regular meeting.[2]
 
When an item is added to the agenda after the agenda item public comment period has
ended, the Board shall offer a further public comment opportunity limited to the added
item(s).The public comment opportunity on the added item(s) shall occur prior to official
action or deliberation on the added item(s).
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The presiding officer at each public Board meeting will follow the rules of the Board for the conduct of
public meetings in accordance with this policy and other applicable Board policy.[3][4][5]
 
Guidelines
 
Whenever issues identified by the participant are subject to remediation under policies and procedures
of the Board, they shall be dealt with in accordance with those policies and procedures.
 
Board Business Meetings
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0


Designated public comment times:[4][5]

1. There will be a public comment section at the beginning of the meeting for agenda items only. 
 

2. There will be a public comment section at the end of the meeting for any nonagenda items.

Board Committee Meetings or Work Sessions
 
The purpose of the Board committee meeting or work session is to review items to be placed on the
agenda for the upcoming business meeting and also to discuss other appropriate items.[4]
 
There will be a public comment period at the end beginning of each committee meeting or work
session on agenda items only. If the presiding officer determines that a topic needs time for comments,
s/he will establish that time during the meeting.
 
Procedural Guidelines
 
The Board requires that public participants be residents or taxpayers of this district or:

1. Anyone having registered a legitimate interest in a contemplated action of the Board. 
 

2. Anyone representing a group in the school district. 
 

3. Any representative of a firm eligible to bid on materials or services solicited by the Board. 
 

4. Any district employee. 
 

5. Any district student.

All individuals wishing to participate in a public Board meeting shall register on the sign in sheet at
the beginning prior to the designated start of the meeting and shall include the name and address of
the participant and topic to be addressed.
 
Participants must be recognized by the presiding officer and must preface their comments by an
announcement of their name, address, and group affiliation if applicable.
 
Each speaker must limit his/her comments to two (2) minutes or less.
 
All comments shall be directed to the entire Board. No participant may address or question individual
Board members.
 
The presiding officer may:

1. Interrupt or terminate a participant's statement when the statement is too lengthy, repetitive,
personally directed, abusive, obscene, or irrelevant. 
 

2. Request any individual to leave the meeting when that person does not observe reasonable
decorum. 
 

3. Request the assistance of law enforcement officers to remove a disorderly person when his/her
conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting. 
 

4. Establish a time limit on public comment as part of the meeting.

The meeting agenda and all pertinent documents shall be distributed to the press and public at all
meetings.[6]



Legal 1. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 710

2. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 710.1

3. 24 P.S. 407

4. Pol. 006

5. Pol. 006.2

6. Pol. 006.3

65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7


 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Agendas

Code 006.3

Status Active

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed November 24, 2014

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes the value of setting agendas at public School Board meetings.
 
Authority
 
The Board shall establish rules for setting agendas for all public Board meetings.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The presiding officer at each public Board meeting shall follow the rules set forth in this policy for
establishing the agenda for said meetings.
 
Agenda Guidelines
 
The following practices shall be followed in setting agendas for the various types of Board meetings and
district task force meetings:

1. Board Business Meetings 

The Superintendent, in collaboration with the Board President and Board Committee
recommendations, will set and prepare agendas for meetings. In doing so, s/he shall consult, as
s/he finds necessary, with the Board Secretary.[1][2] 
 

2. Board Committee Meetings 

The administrator assigned to a particular committee, in collaboration with the Committee
Chairperson assigned to that particular committee, will set the agendas. Any Board member may
request that an item be included in any committee meeting as time permits. 
 

3. Board Retreats, Planning Sessions, Orientation Sessions 

The Board President, in collaboration with all Board members, and with the Superintendent as
requested, will set the agendas for Board retreats, planning sessions, and orientation sessions. 
 



4. District Task Force Meetings 

The Superintendent or assigned administrator will set the agendas for district task force meetings. 
 

5. Other Meetings 

Depending on the intent of any other type of meeting not covered in this policy, the agenda will be
set by the person designated by the Superintendent and the Board President. If there is any
disagreement by other Board members, it will be determined by a vote of the Board majority.

Agendas shall allow time for the remarks of the public who wish to speak briefly before the Board, in
accordance with Board policy.[2]
 
The Board shall follow the order of business set up by the agenda unless the order is altered by a
majority vote of the Board members present. Items of business not on the agenda may be discussed
and acted upon if a majority of the Board agrees to consider them. The Board, however, may not revise
Board policies, or adopt new ones, unless such action has been scheduled.[1][3][4]
 
The agenda, together with supporting materials, shall be distributed to Board members sufficiently prior
to the Board meeting, if at all possible, to permit them to give items of business careful consideration.
The agenda shall also be made available to the press, representatives of community and staff groups,
and to others upon request.

Legal 1. Pol. 006

2. Pol. 903

3. Pol. 003

4. Pol. 006.2



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

October 25, 2021 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of September 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances 
for the General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments 
schedule for the General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the 
schedule of disbursements for all funds, and the debit memos and check register for all 
funds. The Statement of Disbursements Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for 
the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the 
Statement of Disbursements Summary for the period of September 1 to September 30, 
2021 totaling $46,399,871.76. This amount includes transfers in the amount of 
$18,000,000 into the District investment account.  
 
 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in 
the Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please 
contact the School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/


































































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
OCTOBER 25, 2021

STATEMENT OF DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY 
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2021 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

GENERAL FUND DISBURSEMENTS 44,972,951.63
 includes Technology,

    Federal Programs and any Special State Funds

BILLS PAID 26,972,951.63
INVESTMENTS 18,000,000.00

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 354,915.73

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 941,837.92

SPECIAL REVENUE - Athletics 888.10

TRUST FUNDS 0.00

CAFETERIA 75,393.90

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 18,115.10

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 35,769.38

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 46,399,871.76

NOTE: A copy of the details of the above disbursements is
              available for review from the Board Secretary.     



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

October 25, 2021 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of the September 30, 2021 Financial Report 
 

Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month 
ending September 30, 2021.  
 
I so move. 
 
2021-2022 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of September 2021 represent 3 months of financial activity for 
the District.  To date we have collected $167.8 million in real estate taxes, we have $7.8 million 
more in taxes to collect to achieve our budget. Our YTD current real estate tax collections are 
trending slightly ahead of last year as compared to budget.   
 
The second largest local revenue category is Earned Income Tax which is in line with last year’s 
collections.  Based on last year’s EIT collections as well our current YTD collections, we will be 
increasing our projections for the current year.  We will continue to monitor EIT closely this year 
to provide updated projections if needed.  We have received $1.9 million in transfer taxes year 
to date, this amount is ahead of last year and is the result of the size and timing of property 
transfers within the District. Interim tax collections are well ahead of last year and this is due to 
the new construction within the District. 
 
Our local revenues YTD total $175.8 million or 86.03% of budget.  State revenues are slightly 
behind budget due to the delay in receipt of the Social Security revenues.  Federal revenues are 
on target with budget.   
 
We have reduced our projections for salaries and benefits related to average teacher salary in 
the amount of $710,615, offset with an increase of $92,684 as a result of the hiring of the 
Community Engagement Specialist. We have decreased our supplies in the amount of $51,030 
as a result of our enrollment and PPA reconciliation and reduced our variable rate debt service 
expense in the amount of $100,000 for the 2021-22. 
 
We have increased our transfer tax revenue by $500,000 and increased our Federal Cares 
grant revenue in the amount of $92,684 to support the hiring of the Community Engagement 
Specialist. 
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $279.5 million in expenses and $254.0 
million in revenues this year and we budgeted to use $25.5 million of our fund balance to close 
the gap between the expenses and revenues.  
 
Our fund balance is projected to be $48.6 million at June 30th 2022, but we are anticipating a 
$2.9 million budget gap after an Act 1 index tax increase for the 2022-23 school year.  
 
This concludes the financial report. 
 
John T. Scully, School Board Treasurer 































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

October 25, 2021 

Fugett Middle School Auditorium 

7:00 pm 

 

OTHER BUSINESS

 

Action Items 

 

Approval to reaffirm the election of Robert Sokolowski to the position of 

Superintendent of Schools and approve his contract of employment for a time 

period of August 14, 2021 through June 30, 2026. 

Approval is requested to reaffirm the election of Robert Sokolowski to the position of 

Superintendent of Schools and approve his contract of employment for a time period of 

August 14, 2021 through June 30, 2026, consistent with the School Code of 1949. The 

Board previously acted on the election of the Superintendent, however, the Board 

Motion at the April 26, 2021 School Board Meeting did not align with the term of Dr. 

Sokolowski’s employment contract.  By approving this motion herein, the Commission of 

the Superintendent shall align with his employment contract which expires on June 30, 

2026. 

I so move. 


	1 2021.10.25 Board Agenda
	4 2021.09.27 Minutes - draft
	7 2021.10.25 PR
	8 2021.10.25 Consent Agenda
	IX.  School Board Reports
	Background

	9-A1-15 Oct EDU action packet
	.Action Items 10.25.21
	Ed Comm Minutes 10.11 DRAFT
	October CA bd
	Establish Henderson Board Game Club
	Establish Henderson Warriors Cricket Club
	Terminate East HS Class of 2021
	East HS Cheerleading - Orlando, FL 2.9.22-2.14.22
	Rev. Policy 103 Disc.Title IX Sexual Harassment-Stu. 1st R
	Rev Policy 104 Disc.Title IX Sexual Harassment-Staff, 1st R



	9-B1 Oct PS Action Item packet
	PS I so move October 2021
	PS Comm Meeting Minutes 101121

	9-D 10.25.21 PFC Action Items packet
	10.25.21 PFC Action Items
	Property & Finance Committee
	October 25, 2021 – ACTION ITEMS

	10.18.21 PFC Committee Minutes (002)
	WCASD- ACP Addendum 10-21 (002)
	Board Policy 006 Meetings First Reading
	Board Policy 006.2 Rules of Order - First Reading
	Board Policy 903 Public Participation in Board Meetings First Reading
	Board Policy 006.3 Agendas - Retire

	10-1 10.25.18 Treasurer's Report packet
	Sep 2021  treasurers report
	2021.10 October Treasurer's Report
	Statement of Disbursements Sept 2021
	DISBSUM


	10-2 10.25.21 Financial Report packet
	Sep 2021 finreport
	Rev and Exp Report Sept 2021

	10-3 other Business RS reaffirm



